
TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

Site Walk 
The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet at 24 Powdermill Road to consider agenda items 3.  

The group will meet at 24 Powdermill Road on July 11th, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

Monthly Meeting 
The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Nowak Room, Exeter Town Offices 

 at 10 Front Street, Exeter on Tuesday, July 11th, 2023 at 7:00 P.M. 

Call to Order: 
1. Introduction of Members Present
2. Public Comment

Action Items: 
1. Drinking Water Trust Fund Grant Application for Conservation Land (Southeast Land

Trust/Trust for Public Lands)
2. Wetland Dredge and Fill application for the Bank Stabilization along the Exeter River at River

Run at Exeter, Tax Map 104/79 (Paige Libbey)
3. Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Dredge and Fill application for 772 square feet of wetland

impact and a Wetland Conditional Use Permit associated with the construction of a residential
driveway for a new single-family house at 24 Powdermill Road – Tax Map 102-04 (Daniel
Coons)

4. Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Application for Epping Road Expansion (Peter Walker,
VHB)

5. Conceptual discussion on the construction of commercial vehicle storage area for Foss Motors at
Tax Map 52/Lot 112.2 (Christian Smith)

6. Committee Reports
7. Approval of Minutes: Jun 13th, 2023 Meeting
8. Correspondence
9. Other Business
10. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled 8/8/23, Submission Deadline 7/28/23)

Andrew Koff   
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted July 7th, 2023 Exeter Town Website www.exeternh.gov and Town Office kiosk. 

ZOOM Public Access Information: 
Virtual Meetings can be watched on Ch 22 or Ch 98 and YouTube.  
To access the meeting, click this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81547151492 
To access the meeting via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 815 4715 1492 
Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak. 
Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9. 
More instructions for how to access the meeting can be found here:  
https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-town-meetings  

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues. 



TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  July 7th, 2023  
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject: July 11th Conservation Commission Meeting  

 
Trust of Public Lands 
In June 2021 the Commission discussed this project as a potential conservation property.  At the time we 
also discussed the existence of an ownership dispute between the Town and the Rugg family on a portion 
of the parcels in Exeter and that work was under way by the Rugg family to clarify this.  No resolution 
has been reached at the time of writing this memo.  A meeting is scheduled with the Town manager and 
the owners during the afternoon of July 11th and we anticipate receiving a preliminary survey plan and 
title report from the Rugg family at that time.  
 
In 2021, the Commission expressed support for working with SELT to consider potential conservation of 
the Rugg property once ownership has been resolved to clarify which parcels would be considered.  SELT 
has partnered with The Trust for Public Lands (TPL) who has taken the lead on the project. TPL is 
preparing a Drinking Water Trust Fund grant eligibility application to evaluate whether the proposed 
project is eligible for future grant funding.  This work is being done with the caveat that prior to any 
acquisition, a resolution will need to be reached between the Town and the Rugg family. They are seeking 
a letter in support of applying to determine project eligibility. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
  
To authorize the Chair to send a letter indicating Conservation Commission support for filing an eligibility 
application for the Drinking Water Trust Fund grant. 
 
This motion is made with the caveat that any future application would be submitted only after 
ownership has been resolved.  

 
River Run Bank Stabilization 
In 2009, 2012 and 2019 there have been 3 erosion events on this property resulting from water line breaks 
that triggered bank failure.  Both the Building Inspector and I were onsite to inspect all 3 failure events.  
Apart from removal of the residential structures, and some tree removal/trimming, the former owner did 
not complete any work to stabilize the sites.  The property is now under new ownership and they are 
working to design bank stabilization plans for 3 separate locations where the bank failures occurred. As 
the application mentions site 2 also includes a river access path. It is unclear what the surface material is 
proposed to be.   
  
Dave and I consulted on the bank stabilization project and determined it did not need a conditional use 
permit because it is repairing/restoring an already impacted buffer in a manner that will result in an 
improvement to the functions the shoreland protection district is designed to protect.   
 
This wetland application was presented to ESRLAC who provided this comment to NHDES: 

The Exeter-Squamscott River Local Advisory Committee (ESRLAC) met with Paige Libbey of 
Jones & Beach Engineers on June 27th to review the Wetlands Permit Application filed by 
Cobblestone Assets, 12 Sir Lancelot Dr., Exeter. ESRLAC does not support the work proposed in 
the permit application. ESRLAC recommends the applicant complete a stormwater analysis for 
the entire property before initiating the bank stabilization described in the application. 



  
The plans filed with the permit application identify three sites where bank stabilization is 
proposed. According to Ms. Libber, the erosion at sites one and three are the result of stormwater 
runoff created by changes in the landscape after a water main failure. Little else seems to be 
known about stormwater management on the property and ESRLAC believes an understanding 
about runoff from the site is needed before bank stabilization plans can be designed. 

 
I did clarify with Theresa that I was present to inspect all 3 sites at the time of failure and in all 3 cases it 
was waterline failure, not the stormwater structures that caused bank failure.   
 

Suggested Motion: Send a memo to the State indicating: 
 
____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to the application as proposed. 
 
____     We have reviewed this application and recommend that the application be  
  (approved)(denied) as noted below: 

 
 
24 Powdermill Rd: 
This lot was created through a subdivision approval by the Planning Board at their May 25th meeting and 
included a 20’ wide driveway easement coming off the existing driveway.  The plans submitted for the 
June Conservation Commission meeting showed a driveway from Powdermill Rd. At the time of 
application, I noted the original shared-drive route would provide access without wetland impacts and 
expressed a concern the project would not meet the least impactful alternative criteria.  Upon the 
applicant’s request, the application was not acted on at the June CC meeting.  The wetland scientist re-
inspected the site and submitted revised wetland plans on June 20th.  The revision expanded a finger of 
wetland into the driveway easement area. I thought the state application review time would be modified to 
the revised submission date but NHDES indicated this was not the case and issued the wetland 
application on June 26th.  The revised access still requires a conditional use permit from the town.   

 
Suggested Motion for Wetland Conditional Use Permit: 

____ We reviewed this application and feel the need to table the application to a date certain due to 
insufficient information on criteria necessary for the Commission to make a recommendation to the 
planning board as noted below:     We recommend the required information be submitted by the next 
meeting submission deadline of ______ to be heard at the _______ conservation commission meeting date. 
 
____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to the approval of the conditional 
use permit as proposed.  
 
____ We have reviewed this application and recommend that the wetland conditional use permit be 
(approved with conditions) (denied) as noted below: 

 
 
Epping Road  
The Town is proposing to widen Epping Road from Continental Drive to just north of Cronin Road.  
Expansion requires 878 SF of permanent wetland impact and 798 SF of temporary wetland impacts 
visible starting on Sheet 8 of 15.  A single vernal pool was documented outside of the impact area.  NHB 
requests surveys for slender blue iris beardless iris in the project area.  
 
Potential Condition:  Recommend a condition that surveys for slender blue beardless iris are conducted 
and results provided to NHB and the Planning Department before work begins. 
 



 
 

Suggested Motion for State Wetland Expedited Application: 
____ We have reviewed this application and agree to waive our right to intervene in the 

application as proposed and authorize the Chair to sign the application on our behalf. 
 

____     We have reviewed this application and authorize the chair to send a memo that recommends  
the wetland application  
be (approved with conditions) (denied) as noted below: 
 

 
127 Portsmouth Ave Conceptual: 
The applicant wishes to present the project to you for your feedback.  Neither the applicant nor the Board 
shall be bound by these discussions.  No motions/board action is required but comments could help the 
applicant understand the best approach moving forward. For details refer to the letter and site plan 
concept in your packet.   



Proposed Newfields-Exeter Community Forest 
Rugg Property Acquisition 

Project Plan, June 2023 

Background 

The Rugg family owns* an approximately 170-acre parcel of land between the towns of Newfields and 
Exeter in Rockingham County, New Hampshire. The property includes a house, plant nursery, 
woodlands, and extensive trail system. The Ruggs have owned and stewarded the property for three 
generations, starting with Olive and Donald Rugg who moved to the area in the mid 1900’s and first 
established the trails, and now continued by Derek Rugg and his wife Nadine Rugg, and Cheri (Rugg) 
Ludwig and her husband Keith Ludwig. The property has miles of established trails, which the family 
generously opens to public use for mountain biking, trail running, walking/ hiking, cross-country skiing, 
and snowshoeing. These trails form part of an extensive and highly popular regional trail network that 
continues onto adjacent town forest lands owned by Newfields and Exeter. The trails on the property 
and adjacent town lands are maintained by volunteers from the Fort Rock Riders mountain biking club. 

Project Description 

The project is the proposed purchase of 148 acres of the 170-acre Rugg property by the towns of 
Newfields and Exeter. The goals of the project are to expand adjacent town forest lands, protect and 
secure public access to the northern part of the popular Fort Rock trails network, protect water quality 
for two nearby public drinking water wells, and avoid the costs and impacts of a new rural subdivision.  

• Newfields portion (addition to Inland Acres Town Forest): 101 acres
• Exeter portion (addition to Oakland Town Forest): 47 acres

The remaining 22 acres around the Rock Crest Nursery will be retained by the Rugg family. 

Following purchase, a new and much-needed trailhead and parking area is proposed along Piscassic 
Road in Newfields to improve public access.  

Goals of the Project 

1. Expand existing town forest lands by 33% for public recreation, open space and wildlife (148
acres added to 488 acres of existing town forest to create a 636-acre block).

2. Protect 25% of a highly popular, multi-use hiking and biking regional trail network (12 miles out
~50 miles of trail are located on the proposed property).

3. Protect water quality within two impaired coastal watersheds and a wellhead protection area of
two public drinking water wells.

4. Improve public access to the trail network through a new trailhead and parking area.
5. Establish a community forest where the community has input into use and management.

Recreational Values and Fort Rock Trail Network 

There is a 50-mile multi-use public trail network across the Rugg property and three adjacent, connected 
town forests known as the Fort Rock Trails. Estimated breakdown of trails and town forest acreage: 

• Rugg property (proposed for conservation): 148 acres, est. 12 miles of trail
• Inland Acres Town Forest (Newfields): 40 acres, est. 3 miles of trail – adjacent to Rugg property

* PLEASE REFER TO MEMO FOR NOTE ON OWNERSHIP 



• Oakland Town Forest (Exeter): 200 acres, est. 20 miles of trail – adjacent to Rugg property 
• Henderson Swasey Town Forest (Exeter): 220 acres, est. 15 miles of trail – across highway 101  

 
TOTAL: approximately 600 acres of town forest lands, and 50 miles of trail 

The trail network is highly popular and regionally known for mountain biking, with miles of purpose-built 
single-track trails. It used by an estimated several thousand bikers per month. The trail network also 
supports walking/ hiking, trail running, snowshoeing, cross-country skiing, and snowmobiling when 
snow cover is sufficient.   

The Oakland Town Forest in Exeter is accessible by four public parking areas, while the Inland Acres 
Town Forest in Newfields has one small parking area that is often full. There is no existing parking from 
the north side of the trail network in Newfields.  

Fork Rock Riders, the local mountain biking club, generously volunteers to maintain the Fort Rock trail 
system including trails on the Rugg property. Projects range from simple drainage work to building 
significant bridges, boardwalks and miles of new single-track trails. Funds for this work are raised by the 
volunteers of Fort Rock Riders. For Rock Riders grooms the trails in the wintertime, and had a 
fundraising effort to purchase a trail groomer, where they exceeded the goal in a matter of days, 
demonstrating strong local support of their trail efforts. 

Development Risk  

The family would like to sell the land for conservation and that is their primary goal. However, if the 
property is not sold for conservation, subdivision and development is their fallback option. The family 
has retained an engineer to develop a 67-lot subdivision plan that has been preliminarily discussed with 
the Newfields Planning Board. The subdivision plan has been revised several times and was considered 
within the appraisal.    

Community Forest Planning & Public Process 

The future use and management of the property after it is acquired by the towns is anticipated to look 
much the same as it does today, including the multi-use recreational trails open to the public and trail 
maintenance generously provided by Fort Rock Riders volunteers. Still, a key element of the project will 
be engaging the community to provide input on public uses and management moving forward.  

Community Forest Planning Meetings  
A series of public planning meetings will held to gain input from the local community on recreation uses, 
trails, forest management, education/ youth engagement, and other ideas for the community forest. 
The Committee will be organized by the Trust for Public Land (or consultant), the Newfields 
Conservation Commission, and Fort Rock Riders, and will be open to residents from both towns and 
members of the public.  

Community Forest Management Plan 
A Community Forest Management Plan will be developed at the end of the public planning process 
based on input from the public and natural resource professionals. The Management Plan will address 
recreational uses, trail planning and maintenance, wildlife habitat protection, and any forestry activities. 

Community Forest Committee 
Through the planning process, a governance structure will be established to ensure long-term 



management of the community forest according to the Management Plan and with input from the 
public. The current plan is to establish a Community Forest Committee within the Newfields 
Conservation Commission, or potentially jointly hosted by the Newfields and Exeter Conservation 
Commissions. An agreement between Fort Rock Riders and the two towns may also be developed to 
formalize trail maintenance.   

Estimated Timeline 

2023 
January to March Initial planning and project development - DONE 
February 1 Meet with Newfields Con Comm - DONE 
April 25 Meet with Newfields Select Board - DONE 
May 17 LCHIP pre-application deadline (Newfields) - DONE 
June 1 Clean Water SRF pre-application deadline (Newfields) - DONE 
June 2 LWCF pre-application deadline (Newfields) - DONE 
June 13 Yellowbook Appraisal - DONE 
June 21 LCHIP full application deadline (Newfields) - DONE 
July 28 DWGTF pre-application deadline (Exeter) - UNDERWAY 
July 11 Initial meetings with Exeter Con Comm and Town Manager - PLANNED 
July 18 First Newfields Public Meeting – PLANNED  
July Sign Option Agreement  
July Title and boundary issues with Exeter resolved – UNDERWAY  
August  Second Newfields Public Meeting – TBD  
September 7 LCHIP Site Visit scheduled  
September 8 DWGTF full application deadline (Exeter)  
August Begin private fundraising campaign  
Fall  Additional public meetings as needed to prep for bond requests 
November  LCHIP grant decision notice  
December  DWGTF grant decision notice 
2024 
January to March Prepare for town budget meetings/ bond request 
February  CFP Application Deadline 
March Town budget meetings/ bond referendums (both Newfields and Exeter, TBD) 
May to October Community forest planning public meetings (monthly) 
September  CFP grant decision notice 
September LWCF grant decision notice 
November LCHIP grant decision notice (if deferred) 
Throughout 2024 Due diligence: title, survey, environmental, updated appraisal (6 months) 

Agency review of due diligence (5 months) 
2025 
January Agencies review and approve due diligence 
March 30, 2025* Option Deadline  
Within 90 days* Closing Deadline 
TBD  Build trailhead/ parking area on Piscassic Road 

NOTE: This timeline assumes successfully securing four public grants in the first application round, and large 
conservation bonds approved by both towns. 
*Potential to close Exeter portion ahead of Newfields portion, to be discussed with Exeter.   



Structure of Transaction 

TPL will hold Option Agreements with the landowners (one for the Newfields portion, one for the Exeter 
portion) that gives TPL the option but not obligation to purchase the property, pending successful 
fundraising, due diligence, and town and TPL approvals. If exercised, TPL will then proceed with closing 
and direct the deed to each town. The Option Agreements will allow for the two transactions to occur 
simultaneously, or the Exeter transaction may occur first (but not vice versa).   

Estimated Cost & Funding Sources 

An initial appraisal compliant with federal appraisal standards (“yellow book”) found the Fair Market 
Value of the 147.6 acres to be $5,166,000 as of June 2, 2023. Allocating this on a per acre basis between 
the two towns, the Newfields estimated land cost is $3,524,500 for the 100.7 acres in Newfields; and the 
Exeter estimated land cost is $1,641,500 for the 46.9 acres in Exeter. Please note that this per acre 
allocation is an estimate and subject to change based on a final appraisal. Please also note that the 
proposed funding listed below is for the purchase price of the land only. Additional projects costs will be 
fundraised through other public grants and private philanthropy.  

Proposed Funding Sources Amount  Source 
Newfields    
USFS Community Forest Program (CFP) $600,000  Federal 
NH Land and Community Heritage Investment Program (LCHIP) $500,000  State 
NH DES Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan (with some 
principal forgiven) 

$2,424,500 State/ Local 

Town of Newfields bond Only if SRF 
not awarded 

Local 

NH Parks & Recreation Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF)* $500,000  Federal 
Total Estimated Land Cost: Newfields $3,524,500  

Exeter    
NH DES Drinking Water and Groundwater Trust Fund (DWGTF) $500,000 State 
Town of Exeter bond $1,141,500 Local 

Total Estimated Land Cost: Exeter $1,641,500  
*The LWCF grant is a backup, as the timeline may not work for the project – TBD after further consultation with the LWCF program.  

Project Team and Partner Roles 

Trust for Public Land (TPL), Project Manager: Leads real estate transaction (including agreement with 
landowners, due diligence, and agency review), fundraising and grants, and community forest planning.  

Southeast Land Trust (SELT), project support: Assists with local relationships, town meetings, 
community forest planning, and new trailhead/ parking area planning.  

Newfields Conservation Commission, future landowner/ land manager: Facilitates town review and 
approvals, town bond funding, public meetings, management plan, and Community Forest Committee.  

Exeter Conservation Commission, future landowner/ land manager: Facilitates town review and 
approvals, town bond funding, public meetings, and management plan.  

Fort Rock Riders volunteer group, trail maintenance: Facilitates trail planning and maintenance, new 
trailhead/ parking area planning, and local relationships.  

Landowner: Participates in community forest planning, provide survey and title research, provide other 
information needed for real estate transaction and due diligence. 



n

nn

n

n

nn

n

NRCS
easement

Piscassic River
WMA

Conner Farm
WMA

Inland
Acres
Town
Forest

Oaklands
Town Forest

Oaklands
Town Forest

Henderson-Swasey
Town Forest

Rivers Reach
Open Space

Raynes
Farm

Forest
Ridge
OSA

TNC/Case

Evergreen
Easement

George F.
Smith

Woodlot

Stuart (Agricultural
Preservation
Restoration)

Captain's
Meadow

Bunker
Property

Piscassic
River
WMA

Exeter Country
Club, Inc.

Scamman Trust

Strathlorne Tract

Chamberlin Easement

Forest
Ridge
OSA

Piscassic
River 2

Oaklands
Town Forest

Piscassic
Greenway

Squ a ms co
t t

R
i v

er

NEWFIELDS

EXETER

CUB
I E

RD

WOO
D

RI
D

GE
LN

PENINSULA
D

R

HA
YE

S
PA

RK

PARK ST

ASH
 ST

RINNY LN

CASS ST

HALL
PL

O
A

K ST

ELM
ST

HALE ST

HAYDEN DR

DE

ER
RUN

ELLIOT ST

OA
K

LN

CHESTNUT
ST

CH
AR

TE
R 

ST

GARRISO
N

LN

REDBERRY RD

ERN
EST AVE

ST
EL

LA
 W

AY

U
N

IO
N

 ST

CR
ESTVIEW

 D
R

DIXON AVE

FIN
N

AVE

W
ENTW

O
RTH

ST

HEATH DR

CO
LO

NI
AL

WAY

MILLSTREAM
D

R

SCANLO
N

W

AY

H
ERI TAGEW

AY

RA
IL

RO
AD

AV
E

ST
UAR

T 
FA

RM

SLOANS
BROOKDR

HA

VEN LN

WALTERS
W

AY

PL
EA

SA
NT 

ST

W
ASHING

TO
N

ST

CO
LU

M
B

US
AVE

OAKST
EXT

RUN AW A Y
R

D

WINDING
BROOK D R

PATRIOTS RD

DEERTREES LN

SW
AZEY

PKW
Y

JAD Y HILL AV
E

DOE RUN LN

O
AK

LA
ND

S
RD

RAEDER DR

CUBA
RD

BUTTERFIELD LN

CONTINENTAL DR

PARTRIDGE HILL RD

HE
M

LO
C

K

CT

INDUST
RIAL DR

BA
S SE

TT
LN

MEADOW RD

O
AK

LA
N

D
RD

CA
PT

AI
NS

W
AY

HALLS MILL RD

RIVER RD

O
LD

TO
W

N
FARM

RD

OLD LEE RD

BEECH HILL RD

W
AT

SO
N

RD

ROCKINGHAM RECREATIONAL RAIL TRL

BRO OKS
ID

E
DR

UV111A

UV108

UV111

UV85

UV27

UV87

UV101

CO
LLEGE RD

N
EW

M
ARKET

RD

FRONTST

RT-101 W
RT-101 E

PO
RT

SM
O

UT
H

AV
E

HIGH ST

EPPING RD

WIN
TE

R
ST

W
ATER

ST

MAIN
ST

EX
ET

ER
RD

BRENTWOOD RD

NE
W

FI
EL

DS
RD

PISCASSIC RD

Little
River

Fr
es

h R iv
er

Piscassic Rive r
S
T
R

A
T
H

A
M

N
E
W

F
IE

LD
S

S
T

R
A

T
H

A
M

E
X

E
T

E
R

NEWFIELDSEXETER

Exeter High
School

Lincoln
Street Elementary
School

Main
Street
School

Newfields
Elementary
School

ATLANTIC
OCEAN

MA

ME

NH

MANCHESTER

BOSTON

PORTLAND

Subject property
Exeter (~47 acres)

Newfields (~101 acres)

Landowner reserved (~22 acres)

Hiking trail or path

Unpaved/gravel or woods road

Municipality boundary

Trust for Public Land completed
land protection project

City/town area

Protected or public land
(by primary protecting agency)

Federal agency

State agency
Municipal, County, or other
public/quasi-public agency

Private conservation
0 0.5 1

Miles ±

June 20, 2023. Copyright © Trust for Public Land. Trust for Public Land and Trust for Public Land logo are federally registered marks
of Trust for Public Land. Information on this map is provided for purposes of discussion and visualization only. www.tpl.org

Proposed Newfields-Exeter Community Forest Expansion
ROC K ING H A M C O UNTY ,  N EW HA MP S HIR E

Town Forests and Trails Map



Note: all photos were taken on/ of the Rugg property by Jerry Monkman, Ecophotography

Primary Photo: Aerial view toward nursery (area of potential subdivision) Secondary Photo: Bikers on trails



Photo 2: Drone/ aerial view of forestPhoto 1: Drone/ aerial view of forest



Photo 4: Drone/ aerial view of wetlandPhoto 3: Trail boardwalk over wetland



Photo 6: Forested wetlandPhoto 5: Hikers on boardwalk 



Photo 7: Forested wetland Photo 8: Hikers on trails



Photo 10: Bikers on purpose-built mountain biking trailsPhoto 9: Volunteer trail maintenance crew



































































































151617181920

21

510

14
13

1211
1098

912 911
910

909

908

907

906

905

904

903

902

901

800
801

802803
804805806807

808

900
950

951
952953

900A
900B

900C

900D

1018
1017

1016

1015

1014

1013

1012

1011

1010

1009

1008

1007

1006

1005

1004

1003

1002

1001

1000

600

411

412

413414
415416417418419

420421422
423424

425426

603604

605606
607

608
609610611612613614

615616

700701702703
704

705
706

707
708709

710711712

512
513

514515
516517518519

520521
522523

524525

215

301

214

213

211

216

217
218

219

220

221

222
223

224
225

226227
228229

230

231

232

233

234

236

325

324

323

322

321

320

319 318 317 316 315 314
313 312

311 310 309 308
307

306
305

304

303

302

113114

115116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125126
127

128129130131132132A

132B132C133134
135

136136A
137138

139

140

141

142

143

144

109A109B

110
111E

112E

110A

110B

110D

109C

101
102103104105106107108

109110C

403404
405406407

408409

410

203204205206
207208209

211A

1
2345

6

7

308A

OFFICE

?

LIN
D

E
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

ROBIN HOOD DRIVE

SIR LANCELOT DRIVE

DOW STREET

ROBIN HOOD DRIVE

FRIAR TUCK DRIVE

CANTERBURY DRIVE

NOTTINGHAM DRIVE

LITTLE JOHN DRIVE

M
A

ID
 M

A
R

IO
N

 D
R

IV
E

CAMELO
T D

RIVE

EXETER RIVER

KING ARTHUR'S COURT

212

210

SITE

Plan Name:

Project:

Owner of Record:

OV-1
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
49.28 ACRES ±

APPLICANT
COBBLESTONE ASSETS

ATTN: JIM BAIRD
12 SIR LANCELOT DR.

EXETER, NH 03833

PROJECT PARCEL
TOWN OF EXETER

TAX MAP 104, LOT 79

EREISSUED FOR REVIEW05/31/230

OVERVIEW EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
BANK STABILIZATION PHASE 1

RIVER RUN AT EXETER, EXETER, NH
COBBLESTONE II LEX, LLC ATTN: ERIK HAGEN

17W220 22ND ST., SUITE 220, OAKBRIDGE TERRACE, IL 60181 BK 6350 PG 270

SCALE: 1"=2000'LOCUS

PSL
PSL

ERE

11188-PLAN-2022.dwg

05/31/23
11188.1AS SHOWN

Designed and Produced in NH

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:

JBE PROJECT NO. 

DRAWING No.

5
11188.1

SHEET 1 OF

R2UBH

R2UBH

R2UBH

06
/0

6/
20

23



1001

1000

600

411

412

603
604

512

513

?

EXETER RIVER

CANTERBURY DRIVE

C
A

M
E

LO
T 

D
R

IV
E

A

A

B

B

SITE

JBE PROJECT NO. 

DRAWING No.

5
11188.1

SHEET 2 OF

Plan Name:

Project: C1
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
49.28 ACRES ±

APPLICANT
COBBLESTONE ASSETS

ATTN: JIM BAIRD
12 SIR LANCELOT DR.

EXETER, NH 03833

PROJECT PARCEL
TOWN OF EXETER

TAX MAP 104, LOT 79

EREISSUED FOR REVIEW05/31/230

 BANK STABILIZATION PLAN
BANK STABILIZATION PHASE 1

RIVER RUN AT EXETER, EXETER, NH
COBBLESTONE II LEX, LLC ATTN: ERIK HAGEN

17W220 22ND ST., SUITE 220, OAKBRIDGE TERRACE, IL 60181 BK 6350 PG 270

SCALE: 1"=2000'LOCUS

PSL
PSL

ERE

11188-PLAN-2022.dwg

05/31/23
11188.1AS SHOWN

Designed and Produced in NH

Owner of Record:

 LEGEND  

"AREA 1"

CROSS SECTION  SECTION B

CROSS SECTION  SECTION A

NOTES:

06
/0

6/
20

23



909

908

907

906

905

904

903

900D

1013

1012

1011

1010

1009

CAMELO
T D

RIVE

CC

D

D

EXETER RIVER

SITE

JBE PROJECT NO. 

DRAWING No.

5
11188.1

SHEET 3 OF

Plan Name:

Project: C2
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
49.28 ACRES ±

APPLICANT
COBBLESTONE ASSETS

ATTN: JIM BAIRD
12 SIR LANCELOT DR.

EXETER, NH 03833

PROJECT PARCEL
TOWN OF EXETER

TAX MAP 104, LOT 79

EREISSUED FOR REVIEW05/31/230

BANK STABILIZATION PLAN
BANK STABILIZATION PHASE 1

RIVER RUN AT EXETER, EXETER, NH
COBBLESTONE II LEX, LLC ATTN: ERIK HAGEN

17W220 22ND ST., SUITE 220, OAKBRIDGE TERRACE, IL 60181 BK 6350 PG 270

SCALE: 1"=2000'LOCUS

PSL
PSL

ERE

11188-PLAN-2022.dwg

05/31/23
11188.1AS SHOWN

Designed and Produced in NH

Owner of Record:

 LEGEND  

"AREA 2"

CROSS SECTION  SECTION C

CROSS SECTION  SECTION D

NOTES:

06
/0

6/
20

23



213

211

110A

110B 110D

109C

109

110C

410

211A

212

210

E

E

EXETER RIVER

SITE

JBE PROJECT NO. 

DRAWING No.

5
11188.1

SHEET 4 OF

Plan Name:

Project: C3
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

TOTAL LOT AREA
49.28 ACRES ±

APPLICANT
COBBLESTONE ASSETS

ATTN: JIM BAIRD
12 SIR LANCELOT DR.

EXETER, NH 03833

PROJECT PARCEL
TOWN OF EXETER

TAX MAP 104, LOT 79

EREISSUED FOR REVIEW05/31/230

BANK STABILIZATION PLAN
BANK STABILIZATION PHASE 1

RIVER RUN AT EXETER, EXETER, NH
COBBLESTONE II LEX, LLC ATTN: ERIK HAGEN

17W220 22ND ST., SUITE 220, OAKBRIDGE TERRACE, IL 60181 BK 6350 PG 270

SCALE: 1"=2000'LOCUS

PSL
PSL

ERE

11188-PLAN-2022.dwg

05/31/23
11188.1AS SHOWN

Designed and Produced in NH

Owner of Record:

"AREA 3"

 LEGEND  
SIDE PROFILE  SECTION E

NOTES:

06
/0

6/
20

23



Plan Name:

Project:

Owner of Record:

DETAIL SHEET

D1
E-MAIL: JBE@JONESANDBEACH.COM

FAX: 603-772-0227
 603-772-4746

PO Box 219
Stratham, NH 03885

85 Portsmouth Ave.

Date:

Drawing Name:
Checked:
Design:

Scale:
Draft:

Project No.: 

BYREV. REVISIONDATE

THIS PLAN SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT WRITTEN
PERMISSION FROM JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. (JBE).

ANY ALTERATIONS, AUTHORIZED OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
AT THE USER'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO JBE.

EREISSUED FOR REVIEW05/31/230

BANK STABILIZATION PHASE 1
RIVER RUN AT EXETER, EXETER, NH

COBBLESTONE II LEX, LLC ATTN: ERIK HAGEN
17W220 22ND ST., SUITE 220, OAKBRIDGE TERRACE, IL 60181 BK 6350 PG 270

PSL
PSL

ERE

11188-PLAN-2022.dwg

05/31/23
11188.1AS NOTED

Designed and Produced in NH

JBE PROJECT NO. 

DRAWING No.

5
11188.1

SHEET 5 OF

COIR ROLL BANK STABILIZATION DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

RECOMMENDED PLANTING LIST:

100'
TYP.*

MIN. 12"

TURBIDITY  BARRIER AND ANCHOR DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL NOTES

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

Vertical log piles
driven with vibrating
head to 10 feet or
refusal depth

10 ft below
channel bed

Planting - willow and other
native wetlands species

Note: Schematic - Not to Scale.  Flow direction into page

Planting - native upland species

Angled branches (small diam.)

Organic fill (tree tops, branches)

Upstream facing rootwad

Diagonal log

Woody habitat material (small diam.)

Cable tie

8.5 ft

8 ft

OHW

Log driven into bank material

4 ft

4.5 ft

SEE COIR ROLL
DETAIL FOR THE
REST OF BANK
STABILIZATION

OLW

DISTANCE VARIES

16 ft

3 ft

Existing bed

WOOD BUTTRESS TYPICAL - CROSS SECTION VIEW

NOT TO SCALE

TOTAL IMPACTS

06
/0

6/
20

23



 

Town of Exeter 
 

 

 

  

 

Planning Board Application  
for 

Conditional Use Permit: 

Wetlands Conservation Overlay 
District 

 
February 2017       

 

Revised 02/2017-CUP 



Town of Exeter Planning Board Application 

Conditional Use Permit: Wetland Conservation Overlay District 
In accordance with Zoning Ordinance Article: 9.1 

 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: 

1. Fifteen (15) copies of the Application 
2. Fifteen (15) 11”x17” and three (3) full sized copies of the plan which must include: 

Existing Conditions 
a. Property Boundaries 
b. Edge of Wetland and associated Buffer (Wetlands Conservation Overlay District – WCOD) 

--Prime wetland: 100’   
--Vernal Pool (>200 SF): 75’ 
--Exemplary Wetland: 50’ 

--Very Poorly Drained: 50’ 
--Poorly Drained: 40’   
--Inland Stream: 25’ 

c. Structures, roads/access ways, parking, drainage systems, utilities, wells and wastewater disposal 
systems and other site improvements  

Proposed Conditions 
a. Edge of Wetlands and Wetland Buffers and distances to the following: 

i. Edge of Disturbance 
ii. Structures, roads/access ways, parking, drainage systems, utilities, wells and wastewater 

disposal systems and other site improvements  
b. Name and phone number of all individuals whose professional seal appears on the plan 

3. If applicant and/or agent is not the owner, a letter of authorization must accompany this application 
4. Supporting documents i.e. Letters from the Department of Environmental Services, Standard Dredge and 

Fill Application and Photos of the property 
5. A Town of Exeter Assessors list of names and mailing addresses of all abutters 
 

Required Fees: 
       Planning Board Fee: $50.00         Abutter Fee: $10.00      Recording Fee (if applicable): $25.00 

 
The Planning Office must receive the completed application, plans and fees on the day indicated on the 
Planning Board Schedule of Deadlines and Public Hearings.   
 
APPLICANT Name: 

Address: 
Email Address: 
Phone: 

PROPOSAL Address: 
Tax Map #________________   Lot#____________ Zoning District: _______________ 
Owner of Record: 

Person/Business 
performing work 
outlined in proposal 

Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 

Professional that 
delineated wetlands 

Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 

 
Revised 02/2017-CUP 



List any variances/special exceptions granted by Zoning Board of Adjustment including dates: 

Describe how the proposal meets conditions in Article 9.1.6.B of the Zoning Ordinance (attached for reference): 

 
Town of Exeter 

Planning Board Application 
Conditional Use Permit: Wetland Conservation Overlay District  

 
Detailed Proposal including intent, project description, and use of property: (Use additional sheet as needed) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Wetland Conservation Overlay District Impact (in square footage): 
Temporary Impact Wetland:                                (SQ FT.) 

   Prime Wetlands                        ___________ 
 

   Exemplary Wetlands              ___________ 
 

   Vernal Pools (>200SF)           ___________ 
 

   VPD                                               ___________ 
 

   PD                                                  ___________ 
 

  Inland Stream                             ___________ 

Buffer:                                  (SQ FT.) 
   Prime Wetlands                        ___________ 

 

   Exemplary Wetlands              ___________ 
 

   Vernal Pools (>200SF)           ___________ 
 

   VPD                                               ___________ 
 

   PD                                                  ___________ 
 

  Inland Stream                             ___________ 
Permanent Impact Wetland:  

   Prime Wetlands                        ___________ 
 

   Exemplary Wetlands              ___________ 
 

   Vernal Pools (>200SF)           ___________ 
 

   VPD                                               ___________ 
 

   PD                                                  ___________ 
 

  Inland Stream                             ___________ 

Buffer:  
   Prime Wetlands                        ___________ 

 

   Exemplary Wetlands              ___________ 
 

   Vernal Pools (>200SF)           ___________ 
 

   VPD                                               ___________ 
 

   PD                                                  ___________ 
 

  Inland Stream                             ___________ 

 
 
 
Revised 02/2017-CUP 



Please attach additional sheets if needed 

ABUTTERS:  PLEASE LIST ALL PERSONS WHOSE PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN NEW HAMPSHIRE AND ADJOINS OR IS 
DIRECTLY ACROSS THE STREET OR STREAM FROM THE LAND UNDER CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD.    
THIS LIST SHALL BE COMPILED FROM THE EXETER TAX ASSESSOR’S RECORDS. 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 

 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP ________________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 

 
TAXMAP________________________________ 
NAME___________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS________________________________ 
_________________________________________   
 
TAXMAP_________________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
 
TAX MAP  _______________________________ 
NAME  __________________________________ 
ADDRESS  _______________________________ 
_________________________________________  

Revised 02/2017-CUP 



9.1.6 B.   Conditions: 

1. That the proposed use is permitted in the underlying zoning district; 

2. That the use for which the permit is sought cannot feasibly be carried out on a portion or 
portions of the lot which are outside the Wetlands Conservation Overlay District; 

3. The proposed impact has been evaluated in the context of the relative “value” of the 
wetland, including its ecological sensitivity, as well as its function within the greater 
hydrologic system.  To the extent feasible, the proposed impact is not detrimental to the 
value and function of the wetland(s). 

4. That the design, construction and maintenance of the proposed use will, to the extent 
feasible, minimize detrimental impact on the wetland or wetland buffer and that no 
alternative design which does not impact a wetland or wetland buffer or which has less 
detrimental impact on the wetland or wetland buffer is feasible; 

5. In cases where the proposed use is temporary or where construction activity disturbs areas 
adjacent to the immediate use, that the landowner agrees to restore the site as nearly as 
possible to its original grade and condition following construction; 

6. That the proposed use will not create a hazard to individual or public health, safety and 
welfare due to the loss of wetland, the contamination of groundwater, or other reasons; 

7. That all required permits shall be obtained from the New Hampshire Department of 
Environmental Services Water Supply and Pollution Control Division under NH RSA §485-A: 
17, the New Hampshire Wetlands Board under  NH RSA §483-A, and the United States Army 
Corps of Engineers under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. 

 

Revised 02/2017-CUP 



REVISED PLANS WITH UPDATED WETLAND SURVEY





























































\\vhb\gbl\proj\Bedford\52776.00 Epping Road_NH Route 
27\docs\Permits\Wetlands\00_Municipal Clerk Cover Letter.docx 

July 2023 

Ref: 52776.00 

Andrea Kohler  
Exeter Town Clerk 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 

Re:  NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 
Epping Road (NH Route 27) Improvement Project, Exeter, NH  

Dear Ms. Kohler: 

On behalf of the Town of Exeter (“the Applicant”), VHB is submitting a NH Department of Environmental Services 
(NHDES) Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application for proposed roadway improvements along 
Epping Road (NH Route 27 or NH 27) in Exeter, NH beginning at the intersection with Continental Drive and 
extending north to approximately 300 feet north of the Cronin Road intersection.  

Roadway widening is proposed along both sides of Epping Road beginning from the Continental Road 
intersection to the northern project limit to make this section of Epping Road three lanes wide instead of two 
lanes, adding various turn lanes to improve traffic flow and safety. The Project purpose is to address capacity 
and safety concerns that exist along the corridor due to increasing local and regional development. During peak 
traffic periods it becomes difficult to turn into or out of the adjacent drives and side streets. This can lead to 
congestion on the main road and increase crashes due to risk taking. There is also a need for pedestrian 
accommodations within the project since there are very limited existing sidewalks. Additional proposed work 
includes driveway reconstructions, new curbed sidewalks on both sides, drainage improvements, striping, 
pavement resurfacing, and sign installation. A total of approximately 868 square feet of permanent impact and 
798 square feet of temporary impacts is proposed within roadside palustrine wetlands to widen the existing 
roadway and improve traffic flow and safety along NH 27. 

This project is being submitted as a Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application per Env-Wt 
407.03(a) since this project proposes less than 3,000 square feet (sq ft) of jurisdictional impacts to palustrine 
wetlands and complies with the expedited permit criteria in Env-Wt 306.03 and Env-Wt 310. In accordance with 
the procedure for submitting a Wetlands Permit Application to NHDES in RSA 482-A:3(I)(a)(1), we are submitting 
four copies of the application for internal distribution to the local governing body, planning board, and 
conservation commission. You must also retain one copy of the permit application package to be made 
accessible to the public.  

Please do not hesitate to contact me at pwalker@vhb.com or (603) 391-3942 if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Peter Walker 
Principal, Environmental Services 



NHDES MINIMUM IMPACT EXPEDITED WETLANDS PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

 

 

Epping Road Improvement 
Project 
Exeter, New Hampshire 

PREPARED FOR 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Exeter 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 

PREPARED BY 

2 Bedford Farms Drive, Suite 200 
Bedford, NH 03110 
603.391.3900 

July 2023 
  



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 i Table of Contents 

Table of Contents 
 

NHDES Wetlands Permit Application Form 
 
Application Narrative 

1 Introduction and Project Description..................................................................................................... 1 

2 Site Description and Existing Conditions .............................................................................................. 2 

2.1 Natural Resource Review ......................................................................................................................... 2 
2.2 Natural Resource Delineation ................................................................................................................ 3 
2.3 Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Species .................................................................................... 6 
2.4 Property Ownership and Abutters ....................................................................................................... 7 

3 Impact Analysis and Best Management Practices .............................................................................. 8 

3.1 Proposed Impacts and Mitigation Assessment .............................................................................. 8 
3.2 Best Management Practices ................................................................................................................... 8 

4 Other Agency Coordination.................................................................................................................... 10 

5 Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 500) ...................................................................................... 11 

5.1 Env-Wt 527.02: Approval Criteria for Public Highways ............................................................. 11 
5.2 Env-Wt 527.03: Application Requirements for Public Highway Projects ............................ 12 
5.3 Env-Wt 527.04: Design Requirements for Public Highway Projects ..................................... 13 
5.4 Env-Wt 527.05: Construction Requirements for Public Highway Projects ......................... 14 
5.5 Env-Wt 527.06: Maintenance and Repair for Public Highway Projects ............................... 14 

 

Appendices 
Appendix A ................................................................................................................................... Project Mapping 

Appendix B ........................................................................................................................................... Project Plans 

Appendix C .................................................................................................................................. Site Photographs 

Appendix D ......................................................................... NHB DataCheck Results and Correspondence  

Appendix E ................................................................................. USFWS IPaC Results and Correspondence 

Appendix F ............................................................................................................................. Abutter Information 

Appendix G  .......................................................................................................... USACE Appendix B Checklist 



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 1 of 7 

Env-Wt 310.01 
EXPEDITED MINIMUM IMPACT (EXP) 

WETLANDS PERMIT APPLICATION 
Water Division/Land Resources Management 

Wetlands Bureau 
Check the Status of your Application 

 
RSA/Rule: RSA 482-A/Env-Wt 100-900 

APPLICANT’S NAME: Town of Exeter TOWN NAME: Exeter 

 

SECTION 1 - REQUIRED PLANNING FOR ALL PROJECTS (Env-Wt 306.05; Env-Wt 603.03; Env-Wt 603.05) 
Please use the Wetland Permit Planning Tool (WPPT), the Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) DataCheck Tool, the Aquatic 
Restoration Mapper, or other sources to assist in identifying key features such as: priority resource areas (PRAs), 
protected species or habitats, coastal areas, designated rivers, or designated prime wetlands. 

Does the property contain a PRA? If yes, provide the following information:   Yes  No 

• Does the project qualify for an Impact Classification Adjustment (e.g. NH Fish and Game 
Department (NHF&G) and NHB agreement for a classification downgrade) or a Project-Type 
Exception (e.g. Maintenance or Statutory Permit-by-Notification (SPN) project)? See Env-Wt 
407.02 and Env-Wt 407.04).  

 Yes  No 

• Protected species or habitat? 
o If yes, species or habitat name(s): slender blue beardless-iris 
o NHB Project ID #: NHB23-0464 

 Yes  No 

• Bog?  Yes  No 

• Floodplain wetland contiguous to a tier 3 or higher watercourse?  Yes  No 

• Designated prime wetland or duly-established 100-foot buffer?  Yes  No 

• Sand dune, tidal wetland, tidal water, or undeveloped tidal buffer zone?  Yes  No 

Is the property within a Designated River corridor? If yes, provide the following information: 
• Name of Local River Management Advisory Committee (LAC):       
• A copy of the application was sent to the LAC on Month:      Day:      Year:      

 Yes  No 

For dredging projects, is the subject property contaminated? 
• If yes, list contaminant(s):        

 Yes  No 

Is there potential to impact impaired waters, class A waters, or outstanding resource waters?  Yes  No 

For stream crossing projects, provide watershed size (see Wetland Permit Planning Tool or Stream Stats): 
not applicable. 

Administrative 
Use 
Only 

Administrative 
Use 
Only 

Administrative 
Use 
Only 

File No.: 

Check No.: 

Amount: 

Initials: 



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 2 of 7 

SECTION 2 - ELIGIBILITY (Env-Wt 306.03; Env-Wt 310.01; Env-Wt 310.03) 

You must confirm that your project meets ALL of the following statements to qualify for the EXP process: 

• The project qualifies as minimum impact project (Env-Wt 306.03). 

• The project does not include activities that are prohibited under RSA 482-A (Env-Wt 306.03(a)). 

• The project does not include any work in a jurisdictional area that was started without first obtaining the 
applicable approval (Env-Wt 306.03(b)). 

• No work has been done on the subject property pursuant to another EXP or a Statutory Permit-by-Notification 
(SPN) within 12 months of the date this EXP will be issued. Alternatively, if any work has been done on the 
subject property pursuant to another EXP or a SPN within 12 months of the date this EXP will be issued, then 
you are submitting information, including a plan, with this application demonstrating that: 

• The work proposed in this EXP application is wholly unrelated to and separate from the work already 
done under the EXP or SPN; and 

• The work proposed in this EXP application, when combined with work that has been done under 
previously issued EXPs or SPNs within the last 12 months, does not constitute a project for which a 
Standard Permit is required (Env-Wt 310.03(a)). 

• If the project is located in a PRA, it also qualifies for an impact classification adjustment under Env-Wt 407.02 
or a project-type exception (PTE) under Env-Wt 407.04 (Env-Wt 310.01(d)(6)). 

 My project meets all statements above. Proceed to Section 3. 
 My project does not meet all of the statements above. Your project does not qualify for the EXP process.  
Your project either is not permittable or requires a Standard Permit. 

SECTION 3 - INFORMATION ON THE PROPOSED PROJECT (Env-Wt 310.01(c)) 

Identify the rule(s)/provision(s) which make the project a minimum impact project. Refer to the project list below and 
the Expedited Minimum Impact (EXP) Project Classification Guidance Document. 

 Aquatic Vegetation Control Projects (Env-Wt 510.08(a)) 
 Water Access Structure Construction Projects (Env-Wt 511.06(a)) 
 Beach Replenishment Projects (Env-Wt 511.07(a)) 
 Deck or Patio Repair Projects (Env-Wt 511.08(a)) 
 Breakwater Maintenance and Repair Projects (Env-Wt 512.07(b)) 
 Docking and Accessory Docking Structure Construction, Repair, and Replacement Projects (Env-Wt 513.24(a)) 
 Docking Structure Modification Projects (Env-Wt 513.25(a)) 
 Accessory Docking Structure Installation, Construction, Modification, Repair, and Replacement Projects (Env-Wt 
513.26(a)) 

 Canopy Projects (Env-Wt 513.27(a)) 
 Bank/Shoreline Stabilization Construction Projects (Env-Wt 514.07(a)) 
 Dug-in Basins and Boathouse Construction or Modification Projects (Env-Wt 515.06(a), (b)) 
 Dug-in Basins and Boathouse Maintenance and Repair Projects (Env-Wt 515.07(a)) 
 Intake and Outflow Structure Construction, Maintenance and Repair Projects (Env-Wt 516.05; Env-Wt 516.06(b)) 
 Trail or Pathway Projects (Env-Wt 517.06(a); Env-Wt 517.06(d)) 
 Boardwalk Projects (Env-Wt 517.07(a); (Env-Wt 517.09) 
 Dry Hydrants and Other Non-Docking Structure Projects (Env-Wt 518.07(a)(1), (b)) 
 Pond Construction, Maintenance, and Repair Projects (Env-Wt 519.08(a), (b); Env-Wt 519.09(a)) 
 Residential Utility Installation Projects (Env-Wt 521.06(a)(7)) 



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 3 of 7 

 Non-tidal Dredging Projects (Env-Wt 523.04(a)) 
 Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Development Projects (Env-Wt 524.06(b)) 
 Restoration/Enhancement Projects (Env-Wt 525.05) 
 Dam Construction, Reconstruction, or Replacement Projects (Env-Wt 526.06(a)) 
 Dam Modification, Repair, or Maintenance Projects (Env-Wt 526.07(a)) 
 Pubic Highway Projects (Env-Wt 527.06; Env-Wt 527.07) 
 Coastal Projects (Env-Wt 600) 
 Stream Crossing Projects (Env-Wt 903.01(e)) 
 All Other Projects (Env-Wt 407.03) 

Provide the project-specific information required by the rule(s)/provision(s). Refer to Chapters Env-Wt 400, Env-Wt 
500, Env-Wt 600, and/or Env-Wt 900, as applicable, for project-specific application and design requirements. 
This project is being submitted as a Minimum Impact Expedited Permit per Env-Wt 407.03(a) since this project 
proposes less than 3,000 square feet (sq ft) of jurisdictional impacts. This project's compliance with Env-Wt 527 is 
highlighed in Section 5 of the Application Narrative. Env-Wt 600 and 900 are not applicable to the proposed project 
since there are no coastal lands/tidal waters/tidal wetlands or stream crossings within the proposed limits of work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please see applicable Standard Project Specific Worksheets  for guidance. 
For projects located on waterbodies, provide the linear feet of shoreline frontage on the property:       linear feet 

(  Not applicable) 
Provide a brief description of the project and the purpose of the project, outlining the scope of work to be performed 
and whether impacts are temporary or permanent. DO NOT reply “See attached". 
The Town of Exeter proposes to permanently impact approximately 868 sq ft within palustrine wetlands and 
temporarily impact approximately 798 sq ft within palustrine wetlands to widen the existing roadway and improve 
traffic flow and safety along Epping Road/NH 27 beginning at the intersection with Continental Drive and extending 
north to approximately 300 feet north of the Cronin Road intersection.  
 
Roadway widening is proposed along both sides of Epping Road beginning from the Continental Road intersection to 
the northern project limit to make this entire section of Epping Road three lanes wide instead of two lanes, adding 
various turn lanes to improve traffic flow and safety. The Project purpose is to address capacity and safety concerns 
that exist along the corridor due to increasing local and regional development. During peak traffic periods it becomes 
difficult to turn into or out of the adjacent drives and side streets. This can lead to congestion on the main road and 
increase crashes due to risk taking. There is also a need for pedestrian accommodations within the project since there 
are very limited existing sidewalks. Additional proposed work includes driveway reconstructions, new curbed 
sidewalks on both sides, drainage improvements, striping, pavement resurfacing, and sign installation. 



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 4 of 7 

Identify the type of jurisdictional resources to be impacted and the area of impact in square feet and/or linear feet: 
The Town of Exeter proposes to permanently impact approximately 868 sq ft within palustrine wetlands and 
temporarily impact approximately 798 sq ft within palustrine wetlands to widen the existing roadway and improve 
traffic flow and safety along NH 27. 

(  Not applicable) 

SECTION 4 - PROJECT LOCATION (Env-Wt 310.01(b)) 

ADDRESS: Epping Road (NH Route 27) - Continental Drive Intersection to Cronin Road Intersection 

TOWN/CITY: Exeter 

TAX MAP/LOT NUMBER: N/A 

US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) TOPO MAP WATERBODY NAME:       
  N/A 

LATITUDE/LONGITUDE in decimal degrees (to five decimal places): 42.995247 ° North 

-70.971728 ° West 
SECTION 5 - APPLICANT (DESIRED PERMIT HOLDER) INFORMATION (Env-Wt 310.01(a)) 
If the applicant is a trust or a company, then the name of the trust or company should be written as the applicant’s 
name. 

NAME: The Town of Exeter c/o Paul Vlasich 

MAILING ADDRESS: 13 Newfields Road 

TOWN/CITY: Exeter STATE: NH ZIP CODE: 03833 

PHONE: 603-773-6160 EMAIL ADDRESS (OPTIONAL): pvlasich@exeternh.gov 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION: By initialing here: PV, I hereby authorize NHDES to communicate all matters relative 
to this application electronically. 
SECTION 6 - AUTHORIZED AGENT INFORMATION (Env-Wt 310.01(a)) 
If the agent is a company, then the name of the company should be written as the agent’s name. 

NAME: VHB c/o Peter J. Walker 

MAILING ADDRESS: 2 Bedford Farms Drive, Suite 200 

TOWN/CITY: Bedford STATE: NH ZIP CODE: 03110 

PHONE: 603-391-3900 EMAIL ADDRESS (OPTIONAL): pwalker@vhb.com 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION: By initialing here:      , I hereby authorize NHDES to communicate all matters 
relative to this application electronically. 

 



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 5 of 7 

SECTION 7 - PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION, IF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT (Env-Wt 310.01(a)) 
If the owner is a trust or a company, then the name of the trust or company should be written as the owner’s name. 

NAME: same as applicant. Municipally owned roadway right-of-way. 

MAILING ADDRESS:       

TOWN/CITY:       STATE:    ZIP CODE:       

PHONE:       EMAIL ADDRESS (OPTIONAL):       

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION: By initialing here:      , I hereby authorize NHDES to communicate all matters 
relative to this application electronically. 

SECTION 8 - APPLICATION FEE (RSA 482-A:3, I) 

 $400 for minimum impact projects. Please make your check or money order payable to: “Treasurer - State of NH”. 

SECTION 9 - REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS ( Env-Wt 310.01(d)) 

Initial each box below to certify: 
Initials: 
      
      
      

The proposed project meets the conditions and limits of the applicable minimum impact project rule. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

All abutters have been notified. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

If the project is to repair or replace a docking structure, the docking structure is an existing legal structure. 
(  N/A) 

Initials: 
      
      
      

The proposal is the alternative with the least adverse impact to jurisdictional areas, as required by Env-Wt 
310.01(d)(4). 

Initials: 
      
      
      

The project is not an after-the-fact application. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

The project is: 
• Not located in a PRA, or 
• Is located in a PRA but is subject to a classification adjustment under Env-Wt 407.02 or a project-

type exception under Env-Wt 407.04. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

The applicant is aware of the limits of the EXP and understands and will comply with all conditions in the 
EXP and all applicable conditions in Env-Wt 307. 

 



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 6 of 7 

Initials: 
      
      
      

To the best of the signer’s knowledge and belief, all required notifications have been provided. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

The information submitted on or with the application is true, complete, and not misleading to the best of 
the signer’s knowledge and belief. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

The signer understands that:  
• The submission of false, incomplete, or misleading information constitutes grounds for NHDES to: 

1. Deny the application. 
2. Revoke any approval that is granted based on the information.  
3. If the signer is a certified wetland scientist, licensed surveyor, or professional engineer licensed 

to practice in New Hampshire, refer the matter to the joint board of licensure and certification 
established by RSA 310-A:1. 

• The signer is subject to the penalties specified in New Hampshire law for falsification in official 
matters, currently RSA 641. 

• The signature shall constitute authorization for the municipal conservation commission and the 
Department to inspect the site of the proposed project, except for minimum impact trail projects, 
where the signature shall authorize only the Department to inspect the site pursuant to RSA 482-A:6, II. 

Initials: 
      
      
      

If the applicant is not the owner of the property, each property owner signature shall constitute certification 
by the signer that he or she is aware of the application being filed and does not object to the filing. 

SECTION 10 - REQUIRED SIGNATURES (Env-Wt 310.01(d)) 

SIGNATURE (OWNER)*: 
___________________________________ 

PRINT NAME LEGIBLY:  
Town of Exeter c/o Paul Vlasich  

DATE:  
      

*Note: If the applicant is not the owner of the property, each property owner also shall sign and date the application 
provided that property owner signatures shall not be required for transportation projects adjacent to existing rights-of-
way where an easement will be obtained prior to the start of construction (Env-Wt 311.11(d)). Check the following box 
if your project meets this exception: . 

SIGNATURE (APPLICANT, IF DIFFERENT FROM OWNER):  
___________________________________ 

PRINT NAME LEGIBLY:  
N/A, same as owner 

DATE:  
      

SIGNATURE (AGENT, IF APPLICABLE):  
___________________________________ 

PRINT NAME LEGIBLY:  
VHB c/o Peter J. Walker 

DATE:  
      

SECTION 11 - CONSERVATION COMMISSION SIGNATURE (Env-Wt 310.01(h))** 
The signed statement from the Conservation Commission may be submitted electronically. 
The signature below certifies that the municipal Conservation Commission or, if there is no conservation commission, 
the local governing body, has reviewed this application and the municipality waives its right to intervene on the 
project, per RSA 482-A:11. 
AUTHORIZED COMMISSION SIGNATURE: 
_____________________________________ 

PRINT NAME LEGIBLY:  
      

DATE: 
      

 
 
 

6/15/2023



NHDES-W-06-052 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 7 of 7 

SECTION 12 - LOCAL RIVER MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE SIGNATURE (Env-Wt 310.01(i))** 

The signature below certifies that the LAC waives its right to intervene per RSA 482-A:11: 
(   N/A   This project is not within a Designated River Corridor) 
AUTHORIZED LAC REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE: 
_____________________________________ 

PRINT NAME LEGIBLY:  
      

DATE: 
      

**Note: If the application is administratively complete, except for the signed statement from the Conservation 
Commission and/or LAC, the application will be processed under the application processing times established in RSA 
482-A:3, XIV (Env-Wt 310.02(h)). The applicant may also indicate that they are applying for a minimum impact 
application under standard processing timelines. 
 

SECTION 14 - TOWN / CITY CLERK SIGNATURE (Env-Wt 310.01(f)) 
As required by RSA 482-A:3, I(a)(1), I hereby certify that the municipality has received four copies of the application, 
including all attachments.  
TOWN/CITY CLERK SIGNATURE:  
___________________________ 

PRINT NAME LEGIBLY:  
Andrea Kohler 

TOWN/CITY:  
Exeter 

DATE:  
      

 

DIRECTIONS FOR TOWN/CITY CLERK: 
Per RSA 482-A:3, I(a)(1) 

1. IMMEDIATELY sign the original application form and four copies in the signature space provided above. 
2. Return the signed original application form and attachments to the applicant so that the applicant may 

submit the application form and attachments to NHDES by mail or hand delivery. 
3. IMMEDIATELY distribute a copy of the application with one complete set of attachments to each of the 

following bodies: the municipal Conservation Commission, the local governing body (Board of Selectmen or 
Town/City Council), and the Planning Board.  

4. Retain one copy of the application form and one complete set of attachments and make them reasonably 
accessible for public review. 

DIRECTIONS FOR APPLICANT: 
Submit the single, original permit application form bearing the signature of the Town/City Clerk, additional materials, 
and the application fee to NHDES by mail or hand delivery at the address at the bottom of this page. 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 i Table of Contents 

Application Narrative 
  



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 1 Introduction and Project Description 

1 
Introduction and Project Description 
On behalf of the Town of Exeter (“the Applicant”), this Wetlands Permit Application was prepared by 
VHB pursuant to the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) Chapter 482-A, Fill and Dredge 
in Wetlands, and Wetland Bureau Code of Administrative Rules, Chapters Env-Wt 100 through Env-Wt 
900. This project is being submitted as a Minimum Impact Expedited Permit per Env-Wt 407.03(a) since 
this project proposes less than 3,000 square feet (sq ft) of jurisdictional impacts.  

The Town of Exeter proposes roadway improvements along Epping Road (NH Route 27 or NH 27) in 
Exeter, NH (“the Project”) beginning at the intersection with Continental Drive and extending north to 
approximately 300 feet north of the Cronin Road intersection (“the Site”). Roadway widening is proposed 
along both sides of Epping Road beginning from the Continental Road intersection to the northern 
project limit to make this section of Epping Road three lanes wide instead of two lanes, adding various 
turn lanes to improve traffic flow and safety. The Project purpose is to address capacity and safety 
concerns that exist along the corridor due to increasing local and regional development. During peak 
traffic periods it becomes difficult to turn into or out of the adjacent drives and side streets. This can 
lead to congestion on the main road and increase crashes due to risk taking. There is also a need for 
pedestrian accommodations within the project since there are very limited existing sidewalks.   

Additional proposed work includes driveway reconstructions, new curbed sidewalks on both sides, 
drainage improvements, striping, pavement resurfacing, and sign installation. Refer to the Figures 1 and 
2 provided in Appendix A.  

Potential Permit Description: The Town of Exeter proposes to permanently impact approximately 868 sq 
ft within palustrine wetlands and temporarily impact approximately 798 sq ft within palustrine wetlands 
to widen the existing roadway and improve traffic flow and safety along NH 27. 

 

  



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 2 Site Description and Existing Conditions 

2 
Site Description and Existing Conditions 
The Site consists of the existing two-lane Epping Road (NH Route 27 or NH 27) between the Continental 
Drive intersection to the south to approximately 300 feet north of the Cronin Road intersection within 
an actively developing commercial area in Exeter, NH. The Site ends south of the intersection of Epping 
Road and NH Route 101. Epping Road is bordered by forested land, palustrine wetlands, commercial 
businesses, and a single residential property. 

Epping Road is generally a two-lane road with turn lanes added at specific intersections. Traffic is heavy 
during peak hours and the continuous flow makes it difficult for motorists to turn left into or out of the 
adjacent drives and side streets.   

2.1 Natural Resource Review 
The following information is based on a review of the NHDES Wetlands Permit Planning Tool (WPPT). 

› ARM Funded Sites: There are no Aquatic Resource Mitigation (ARM) Funded Sites within the 
vicinity of the Site. 

› Conservation or Public Lands: There are no conservation or public lands that intersect the Site. 
However, there are two permanent municipal conservation easements within the vicinity of the 
Site that will not be impacted by the proposed activities. One is named Mobil and is located off 
Cronin Road, east of Epping Road, and the other is named Edmunds and is located behind a 
small plaza off Jillian Lane, west of Epping Road. 

› Priority Resource Areas (PRAs): There are no mapped PRAs within the Site, nor any resources that 
meet the definitions of a PRA. PRAs include bogs/peatlands, floodplain wetlands contiguous to 
tier 3 or higher watercourses, prime wetlands, 100-foot prime wetland buffers, sand dunes, tidal 
waters or tidal wetlands, and areas that have documented occurrences of protected species or 
habitat in accordance with Env-Wt 103.66.  



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 3 Site Description and Existing Conditions 

› Impairments: The eastern half of the Site is located within the quarter mile buffer of Norris Brook 
(NHRIV600030806-01) which is listed as impaired for E. coli. The proposed activities are not 
expected to contribute to this impairment.  

› Other Water Types: There are no Class A waters or outstanding resource watersheds within the 
vicinity of the Site. Furthermore, there are no National Wild and Scenic Rivers within the Site. 

› Designated River Corridor: There are no Designated River Corridors that intersect or abut the 
Site. Therefore, no coordination with a Local Advisory Committee is required. 

› Floodplains and Floodways: There are no Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
mapped floodplains or floodways within the vicinity of the Site. Refer to the Figure 3 provided 
in Appendix A. 

› Shoreland Jurisdiction: There are no watercourses or waterbodies subject to the Surface Water 
Quality Protection Act (SWQPA) within the vicinity of the Site. Therefore, no permitting through 
the NHDES Shoreland Program is required for this Project. 

› Wildlife Action Plan: The NH Fish & Game Department (NHF&G) has developed the New 
Hampshire Wildlife Action Plan (WAP) to assist with conserving and protecting wildlife species 
and habitat types throughout the State. The WAP identifies ranked habitat tiers that recognize 
the highest quality habitats in the state. Habitat tiers were created by the NHF&G Department 
using biological data, landscape data, and human influence information. Habitat tiers are 
separated into three rankings, which are 1) Highest Ranked Habitat in the State, 2) Highest 
Ranked Habitat in Biological Region, and 3) Supporting Landscape. The Site is bordered by 
forested areas that are mapped as Supporting Landscape. Refer to the Figure 4 provided in 
Appendix A. The Site is primarily Developed Impervious and Developed or Barren Land but is 
also bordered by the Appalachian Oak-Pine, Wet Meadow/Shrub Wetland, Open Water, and 
Temperate Swamp habitat types. Refer to the Figure 5 provided in Appendix A.   

2.2 Natural Resource Delineation 
Jurisdictional wetlands and surface waters within the Site were delineated by VHB Senior Environmental 
Scientist Kristopher Wilkes (NH CWS #288) over the course of several site visits in June of 2021. Wetland 
delineation was performed in accordance with the procedures and standards outlined in the 1987 Corps 
of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual and the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland 
Delineation Manual: Northcentral and Northeast Region, Version 2.0 (January 2012). Wetland delineation 
also relied upon the Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric Soils in the United States, Version 8.1, published 
by the Natural Resource Conservation Service and the Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric Soils in New 
England, Version 4.0, published by the New England Interstate Water Pollution Control Commission. 
Dominant wetland vegetation was assessed using the 2020 National Wetland Plant List published by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Wetlands were classified using the USFWS methodology Classification of 
Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United States (Cowardin et al. 1979, revised 1985). Resources 
were delineated using alpha-numerically coded pink and blue flagging tape, respectively. Site 
observations and field data collected specific to resources proposed to be impacted by the Project are 
summarized below. It should be noted that a potential vernal pool was identified during the delineation 
field work west of Epping Road on Tax Map 47, Lot 7. However, since it is not proposed to be impacted, 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 4 Site Description and Existing Conditions 

it is not discussed further in this application. Delineated resources are depicted on the Wetland Impact 
Plans provided in Appendix B and Site Photographs are provided in Appendix C.  

In accordance with Env-Wt 311.10, functional assessments are only required for minor and major impact 
projects and, therefore, the applicable forms are not included as part of this minimum impact application. 
Similarly, Env-Wt 311.10(d) requires a wetland evaluation report (in other words, detailed descriptions 
of the wetlands along with the functional assessment) for minor and major impact projects. Therefore, 
we have included an overview of the delineated natural resources and only provided detailed 
descriptions of the specific wetlands that are proposed to be impacted. 

Wetland W-1 & Stream S-2 
Wetland W-1 is a large Palustrine, Forested, Broad-Leaved Deciduous, Seasonally Flooded/Saturated 
(PFO1E) wetland that is located downslope of the eastern road shoulder of Epping Road, extending 
easterly outside of the Site. Wetland W-1 is hydrologically connected to a larger wetland system located 
east of Epping Road and south of NH 101. A small 2 to 4-foot-wide intermittent stream, identified as S-
2 and classified as Riverine, Intermittent, Streambed, Sand (R4SB4), drains into Wetland W-1 via a 12-
inch PVC pipe culvert and concrete headwall. 

Stream S-2 is fed by Wetland W-3 which is located opposite of Wetland W-1 along the western shoulder 
of Epping Road. This stream is also associated with Wetland W-3.  

Wetland vegetation present within Wetland W-1 includes red maple (Acer rubrum), blue beech (Carpinus 
caroliniana), highbush blueberry (Vaccinium corymbosum), eastern white pine (Pinus strobus), cinnamon 
fern (Osmundastrum cinnamomeum), sensitive fern (Onoclea sensibilis), peat moss (Sphagnum spp.), 
species of ash (Fraxinus spp.), soft rush (Juncus effusus), reed canary grass (Phalaris arundinacea), and 
various other grasses and sedges (Carex spp.). Several invasive species were noted within Wetland W-1, 
including honeysuckle (Lonicera sp.), glossy buckthorn (Frangula alnus), multiflora rose (Rosa multiflora), 
and oriental bittersweet (Celastrus orbiculatis). 

Soils sampled within Wetland W-1 consist of a fine sandy loam with a depleted matrix with redox 
concentrations within 2 inches of the soil surface meeting the criteria of Hydric Indicator F3: Depleted 
Matrix. Wetland hydrological indicators observed consisted of pockets of surface water, soil saturation, 
geomorphic position, hummock/hollow micro-topography, and drainage patterns. 

Wetland W-2 & Stream S-1 
Wetland W-2 is a multi-cover class complex located along the eastern side of Epping Road to the north 
of Wetland W-1. Central and southern portions of Wetland W-2 are classified as PFO1E transitioning to 
Palustrine, Forested, Broad-Leaved Deciduous, Intermittently Exposed (PFO1G) within flooded portions 
of the wetland further to the east. Wetland W-2 is also characterized by a ponded area, classified as 
Palustrine, Unconsolidated Bottom, Mud, Permanently Flooded (PUB3H), in the northern half of the 
wetland. Habitat bordering the PUB3H portion of Wetland W-2 is classified as Palustrine, Scrub-Shrub, 
Broad-Leaved Deciduous, Seasonally Flooded/Saturated (PSS1E). A partially buried 12-inch culvert was 
observed in the northwestern corner of the wetland. A 6 to 10-foot-wide perennial channel, identified 
as Stream S-1, connects the PUB3H and PFO1E/G portions of Wetland W-2. Stream S-1 is classified as 
Riverine, Unknown Perennial, Unconsolidated Bottom, Mud (R5UB3), and contained stagnant water with 
an organic muddy substrate at the time of delineation.    

Wetland vegetation present within PFO1E/G portions of Wetland W-2 consists of highbush blueberry, 
cinnamon fern, royal fern (Osmunda regalis), a species of iris (Iris spp.), glossy buckthorn, eastern 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 5 Site Description and Existing Conditions 

hemlock (Tsuga canadensis), button bush (Cephalanthus occidentalis), red maple, and peat moss. Soils 
were depleted below a dark surface horizon meeting the Hydric Indicator A11. Hydrological indicators 
observed include saturation, surface water, microtopographic relief, and water-stained leaves.  

The ponded (PUB3H) portion of Wetland W-2 is bordered by speckled alder (Alnus incana), button bush, 
red maple, poison ivy (Toxidendron radicans), glossy buckthorn, royal fern, a species of grape (Vitis spp.), 
witch hazel (Hamamelis virginiana), elderberry (Sambucus canadensis), with purple loosestrife (Lythrum 
salicaria), species of cattail (Typha spp.), various sedges and other aquatic species located within portions 
of the flooded edge. Water depth was estimated at 1 to 3 feet at the time of delineation.  

Wetland W-3 & Stream S-3 
Wetland W-3 is located along the western side of Epping Road to the north of Continental Drive. The 
southern portion of Wetland W-3 is classified as Palustrine, Emergent, Persistent, Seasonally Flooded, 
excavated (PEM1Cx) and captures drainage from the Palustrine, Emergent, Persistent and Palustrine, 
Scrub-Shrub, Broad-Leaved Deciduous, Seasonally Flooded/Saturated (PEM/SS1E) portion of Wetland 
W-3 located to the northwest. Additionally, an intermittent stream, identified as Stream S-3, originating 
from a drainage culvert downslope of a commercial parking lot located to the northwest is directed into 
Wetland W-3 through a dug swale. The intermittent channel at this location is approximately 2-3 feet 
wide and is classified as Riverine, Intermittent, Streambed, Sand, Excavated (R4SB4x).  

The PEM1Cx portion of Wetland W-3 consists of a 4-foot-wide vegetated swale which carries drainage 
from north to south underneath an existing auto dealership driveway via an existing 10-inch CMP. The 
swale then continues south before conveying drainage underneath Epping Road to Wetland W-1 via a 
12-inch PVC pipe and concrete headwall.  

Wetland vegetation found within the PEM/SS1E portion of Wetland W-3 consists of narrowleaf cattail 
(Typha angustifolia), soft rush, white meadowsweet (Spiraea alba), glossy buckthorn, sensitive fern, red 
maple, species of birch (Betula spp.), cinnamon fern, swamp dewberry (Rubus hispidus), speckled alder, 
tussock sedge (Carex stricta), and purple loosestrife. Wetland vegetation found within the PEM1Cx 
portion of Wetland W-3 consists of species of bedstraw (Galium spp.), soft rush, mowed cattail, and 
various other grasses. The PEM1Cx portion of Wetland W-3 appears to be mowed/maintained regularly. 
Wetland W-3 hydrological indicators observed included soil saturation, drainage patterns, surface water 
inputs, and geomorphic position. Wetland soils sampled consisted of a saturated and depleted fine 
sandy loam with redox concentrations found at various depths due to disturbance and deposits 
associated with the adjacent roadway.  

Wetland W-4 
Wetland W-4 is located within a depressional area between two existing commercial businesses to the 
north of Wetland W-3. The southern half of Wetland W-4 is classified as PSS1C and had been recently 
mowed at the time of delineation. This portion of the wetland captures surface water runoff from 
surrounding development and roadway and gradually descends in elevation from east to west draining 
to a PFO1C cover type located in the northern half of Wetland W-4. Further west, Wetland W-4 
transitions to a PEM/PSS cover type dominated by common reed (Phragmites australis).  

PSS1C vegetation consists of speckled alder, sensitive fern, interrupted fern (Osmunda claytoniana), 
poison ivy, rough-stemmed goldenrod (Solidago rugosa), swamp dewberry, royal fern, narrowleaf 
goldenrod (Euthamia graminifolia), glossy buckthorn, red maple, white meadowsweet, soft rush, birch 
seedlings, broom sedge (Carex scoparia), and common yarrow (Achillea millefolium). PFO1C vegetation 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 6 Site Description and Existing Conditions 

consists of red maple, sensitive fern, cinnamon fern, highbush blueberry, royal fern, white meadowsweet, 
and poison ivy. 

Soils sampled within Wetland W-4 varied depending on location meeting Hydric Indicators S5: Sandy 
Redox or F6: Redox Dark Surface. Wetland hydrological indicators include drainage patterns, water-
stained leaves, and geomorphic position. In addition to glossy buckthorn, purple loosestrife was 
abundant within the PSS1C portion of the wetland.  

2.3 Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Species 
The following is a discussion of rare, threatened, and endangered species identified within the vicinity 
of the Site by the NH Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) DataCheck tool and US Fish and Wildlife Service’s 
(USFWS) Information for Planning and Consultation (IPaC) system. 

Natural Heritage Bureau 
A search for the occurrence of rare plant, animal, or natural communities associated with this Project 
was completed using the NHB online DataCheck tool. The NHB DataCheck Report (NHB23-0464) dated 
February 16, 2023, identified the potential presence of the slender blue beardless-iris (Limniris 
prismatica) within the vicinity of the Site. Refer to the NHB DataCheck Results provided in Appendix D. 
Consequently, coordination with the NHB is required. Through consultation with Ashley Litwinenko 
(NHB), she requested that a survey for the slender blue beardless-iris be conducted within the proposed 
impact areas in mid-June to mid-July when the species may be in flower. If not in flower, leaf width 
measurements will be accepted to determine species presence or absence. No construction will begin 
until the survey is conducted and the NHB consultation is complete (i.e., survey results shared with NHB 
to obtain any additional recommendations). Refer to the NHB Coordination Documentation provided 
in Appendix D. 

US Fish and Wildlife Service 
The Site was reviewed for the presence of federally listed or proposed, threatened, or endangered 
species, designated critical habitat, or other natural resources concerning the USFWS IPaC System. 
Results dated May 22, 2023, indicate the potential presence of the northern long-eared bat (Myotis 
septentrionalis, “NLEB”) and monarch butterfly (Danaus plexippus) within the vicinity of the Site. Refer to 
the USFWS IPaC Report provided in Appendix E. 

Northern Long-Eared Bat 
The proposed Project is located within the federally protected range of the NLEB, which is a federally 
endangered species. Tree clearing activities are one of the largest threats to the NLEB. Based on the 
current plans, approximately 0.07 acres of tree clearing is proposed to accommodate the proposed 
roadway widening. No known hibernacula or roost trees currently exist in Exeter. The nearest known 
sites are in the surrounding municipalities of Newfields and Hampton. As such, the proposed Project is 
not within 150 feet of known occupied maternity roost trees, nor within a ¼ mile of known hibernaculum.  

Consultation for the NLEB was conducted using the NLEB Rangewide Determination Key in IPaC. Since 
the Site does not interest an area where NLEB is likely to occur, a no effect determination was made for 
this Project. Refer to the NLEB Consistency Letter provided in Appendix E. 

 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 7 Site Description and Existing Conditions 

Monarch Butterfly 
Since the monarch butterfly is a candidate species but is not listed as threatened or endangered, 
conservation measures are not required but should be implemented when feasible to demonstrate 
environmental stewardship. This species can be found anywhere where nectar producing plants are 
present, especially in open fields or meadows. Monarch butterflies will only breed in places with 
milkweed since that is the primary food source for their larva. Given the routine disturbance within the 
existing Site (primarily roadway right-of-way) and lack of observed milkweed, suitable habitat for this 
species is considered absent from the Site. The candidate status of this species does not provide 
protection under the Endangered Species Act, and no further coordination with the USFWS is required 
at this time. 

2.4 Property Ownership and Abutters 
All Project activities will occur within the existing roadway rights-of-way (ROW), as depicted on the 
Wetland Impact Plans provided in Appendix B.  Despite NH 27 being a state route, the ROW is owned 
by the Town of Exeter.  

All abutting property owners will be notified prior to the filing of this permit application as defined in 
Env-Wt 102.04, per Env-Wt 306.06(a), since this Project is beyond the scope of the “public highway 
maintenance or repair” exemption specified in Env-Wt 306.06(c)(3). A map and list of the abutting 
properties, sample abutter notification letter, and certified mail receipts are provided in Appendix F.   



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 8 Impact Analysis and Best Management Practices 

3 
Impact Analysis and Best Management 
Practices  

3.1 Proposed Impacts and Mitigation Assessment 
Impact Analysis  
The Town of Exeter proposes to permanently impact approximately 868 sq ft within palustrine wetlands 
and temporarily impact approximately 798 sq ft within palustrine wetlands to widen the existing roadway 
and improve traffic flow and safety along NH 27, as depicted on the Wetland Impact Plans provided in 
Appendix B. Impacts to wetlands were avoided and minimized to the extent feasible while still 
accomplishing the Project objectives. The permanent impacts are the result of the proposed slope lines 
associated with the roadway widening and the temporary impacts include areas beyond the slope lines 
that will provide additional workspace as needed during construction. No stream impacts are proposed 
as part of this Project. 

Mitigation 
In accordance with Env-Wt 313.04, compensatory mitigation is not required for this Project as there will 
be no permanent impacts to a PRA and the total proposed impacts to non-tidal wetlands are less than 
10,000 sq ft.   

3.2 Best Management Practices 
Standard Best Management Practices (BMPs) will be applied throughout construction in accordance with 
applicable NHDES and NHDOT BMP Manuals to reduce the risk of erosion and sediment-laden run-off 
from entering the adjacent wetlands. Perimeter controls such as silt fence and/or silt sock will be installed 
upslope of the wetlands to ensure that surface water runoff from unstabilized areas does not carry silt, 
sediment, and other debris outside of the limits of work. All installed temporary erosion control measures 
shall be inspected daily and repaired/replaced as necessary.  



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 9 Impact Analysis and Best Management Practices 

In accordance with the New Hampshire Stormwater Manual, Volume 3, Erosion and Sediment Controls 
During Construction dated December 2008, areas remaining un-stabilized for a period of more than 30 
days shall be temporarily seeded and mulched. Erosion control blankets shall be installed on all slopes 
that are greater than 3 feet horizontal and 1 foot vertical (3:1). Upon the completion of the proposed 
work, all disturbed and graded areas located upslope of the erosion control measures will be seeded 
and mulched as needed. Disturbed areas that have been seeded and mulched will be considered stable 
once 85-percent vegetative growth has been achieved. Refer to the Erosion Control Plans included as 
Appendix B for further details. 

Since invasive plants are known to occur within the Site (i.e., honeysuckle, glossy buckthorn, multiflora 
rose, and oriental bittersweet), all work including daily removal of plant material from construction 
equipment, shall be constructed in accordance with NHDOT’s Best Management Practices for Roadside 
Invasive Plants Manual (2008) and Best Management Practices for the Control of Invasive and Noxious 
Plant Species (2018). Only clean equipment that is free of plant material and debris shall be delivered to 
the Site and utilized during construction. All machinery entering and leaving any area containing invasive 
plants will be inspected for foreign plant matter (i.e., stems, flowers, and roots) and soil embedded in 
the tracks or wheels. If foreign plant matter or soil is present, the operator shall remove the plant material 
and soil from the machine using hand tools. 

 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 10 Other Agency Coordination 

 

4 
Other Agency Coordination 
US Army Corps of Engineers 
The proposed work includes 868 sq ft of permanent impacts and 798 sq ft of temporary impacts to 
palustrine wetlands and is subject to the USACE Section 404 jurisdiction through the New Hampshire 
General Permit No. NAE-2022-00849. As such, Appendix B – Corps Secondary Impacts Checklist has been 
completed. Refer to the USACE Appendix B Checklist provided in Appendix G. 

Exeter Conservation Commission 
In accordance with the requirements of a minimum impact expedited wetlands permit application, we 
will present this project to the Conservation Commission in advance of submission to get their signature 
on the application form. Any comments they have on the application will be addressed at that meeting.  

Additionally, in accordance with Env-Wt 311.06(h) and RSA 482-A:3(I)(a)(1), the Conservation 
Commission will receive a complete copy of this application concurrent with the NHDES submission. 

NH Division of Historical Resources 
A Request for Project Review (RPR) is currently being prepared for submission to the NH Department of 
Historical Resources (NHDHR). No adverse impacts to archaeological resources nor aboveground 
historical resources are anticipated to result from the limited scope of the proposed activities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 11 Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 500) 

 

5 
Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 
500) 
Since this Project involves construction activities to an existing public highway, the standards outlined 
in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Env-Wt 527 must be addressed. 

5.1 Env-Wt 527.02: Approval Criteria for Public Highways 
(a) The project meets the design criteria specified in Env-Wt 527.04; 

Refer to the applicable discussion in Section 5.3 of this Application Narrative below.  

(b) The project is consistent with RSA 482-A:1, RSA 483, RSA 483-B, RSA 485-A, and RSA 212-A; 
The proposed Project is consistent with all above referenced statutes. In accordance with RSA 482-
A:1 “Finding of Public Purpose,” the interests of the general public regarding preservation of natural 
resources is in line with the proposed activities; the proposed impacts have been avoided and 
minimized to the extent feasible while still accomplishing the Project objectives. No substantial 
adverse impacts to the functions and values of the palustrine wetlands are expected to result from 
the limited proposed edge impacts. RSA 483 “NH Rivers Management and Protection Program” and 
RSA 483-B “Shoreland Water Quality Protection Act” are not applicable to this Project, as there are 
no perennial streams within the Site. RSA 485-A “Water Pollution and Waste Disposal” is not 
applicable to the proposed Project which involves improvements to an existing road to improve 
traffic flow. BMPs will be implemented throughout construction to protect water quality and no 
additional waste will be generated within the Site because of this Project post-construction. Finally, 
coordination with NHB was conducted to ensure all appropriate conservation measures are followed 
to avoid adverse impacts to identified species, thereby, complying with RSA 212-A “Endangered 
Species Conservation Act.”  



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 12 Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 500) 

(c) The purpose of the project is to improve operations and public safety, consistent with federal and state 
safety standards; 
The Project purpose is to address capacity and safety concerns that exist along the corridor due to 
increasing local and regional development. During peak traffic periods it becomes difficult to turn 
into or out of the adjacent drives and side streets. This can lead to congestion on the main road and 
increase crashes due to risk taking. There is also a need for pedestrian accommodations within the 
project since there are very limited existing sidewalks.   

d)  The project will not cause displacement of flood storage wetlands or cause diversion of stream flow 
impacting abutting landowner property; and  
No streams are proposed to be impacted as part of this Project. Furthermore, the limited proposed 
edge impacts to the palustrine wetlands that border the existing road are minimal and not expected 
to adversely impact the functions and values of these wetlands (i.e., the existing flood storage 
capacity of the wetlands within the Site will closely match the existing conditions).  

(e)  For a project in the 100-year floodplain, the project will not increase flood stages off-site. 
Not applicable. There are no FEMA-mapped 100-year floodplains within the Site.  

5.2 Env-Wt 527.03: Application Requirements for Public 
Highway Projects 

(a)  A description of the scope of the project, the size of the impacts to aquatic resources, and the purpose of 
the project; 
Please refer to the preceding sections of this Application Narrative.  

(b) An accurate drawing with existing and proposed structure dimensions clearly annotated to: 
(1) Document existing site conditions; 
(2) Detail the precise location of the project and show the impact of the proposed activity on jurisdictional 
areas; 
(3) Show existing and proposed contours at 2-foot intervals; 
(4) Show existing and proposed structure invert elevations on the plans; and 
(5) Use a scale based on standard measures of whole units, such as an engineering rule of one to 10, 
provided that if plans are not printed at full scale, a secondary scale shall be noted on the plans that 
identifies the half scale unit of measurement; 

   The project plans appended to this application meet these specifications.  

(c) All easements and right-of-way acquisition area outlines in relation to the project; 
   The proposed work will occur within the limits of the existing roadway rights-of-way (ROW), as 

depicted on the Wetland Impact Plans provided in Appendix B.  

(d) The name of the professional engineer who developed the plans, whether an employee of the applicant or 
at a consulting firm; and 

   Mr. Greg Bakos, VHB, NH Professional Engineer #06255, is the engineer of record for the overall 
project design. 

 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 13 Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 500) 

(e)   An erosion control plan that shows: 
(1) Existing and proposed contours at 2-foot intervals, with existing contours shown with a lighter line 
weight and proposed contours shown with a heavier line weight such as a bold font; and 
(2) The outermost limit of all work areas, including temporary phasing work, with perimeter controls. 

   Refer to the Erosion Control Plans provided in Appendix B. 

5.3 Env-Wt 527.04: Design Requirements for Public 
Highway Projects 

(a) Protect significant function wetlands, watercourses, and PRAs; 
There are no mapped PRAs within the Site, nor any resources that meet the definitions of a PRA. 
Additionally, none of the delineated streams are proposed to be impacted.  

(b) Minimize impacts to wetland and riparian function; 
All proposed impacts have been minimized to the maximum extent practicable while still 
accomplishing the Project objectives (i.e., traffic flow and public safety) and limiting impacts to the 
existing roadway ROW. This is also in compliance with Env-Wt 311.07(a).   

(c) Maintain wetland and stream hydrology and function to the remaining aquatic resources; 
The overall hydrology and function of the delineated wetlands will not be adversely impacted post-
construction as the proposed impacts are limited to the roadside edges of the wetlands, leaving 
most of the wetland areas undisturbed. 

(d)  Use on-site measures to compensate for any loss of flood storage where the project proposes: 
(1) Filling or placement of structures in a 100-year floodplain; or 
(2) Greater than 0.5 acre-feet of fill volume or a road crossing that affects floodplain conveyance; 
Not applicable. There are no FEMA-mapped 100-year floodplains within the Site.  

(d) Use on-site minimization and water quality protection measures to prevent direct discharge to surface 
waters and wetlands, including retention of vegetated filter strips between the construction area and the 
aquatic resource areas to disperse runoff with no direct discharge to natural wetlands or surface waters; 
and  
Temporary erosion controls (i.e., silt fence and/or silt sock) will be implemented throughout 
construction to prevent construction site sediment-laden discharge from entering the surrounding 
habitat areas. Refer to the Erosion Control Plans provided in Appendix B. 

(f)   Where temporary impacts will occur, include re-establishment of a similar ecosystem using vegetative 
species and spacing that are as similar as practicable to what was removed unless the applicant shows 
that the proposed vegetative composition will provide higher functions and values.   
All temporarily impacted areas will be restored as close as possible to the existing, pre-construction 
conditions. As needed, a wetland seed mix comprised of native plant species may be used that would 
perform similar, or higher, functions and values to the existing vegetation, such as Scrub/Shrub 
Wetland Seed Mix, Item 644.21. 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 14 Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 500) 

5.4 Env-Wt 527.05: Construction Requirements for Public 
Highway Projects 

(a)  The permit shall be contingent on review and approval by the department of final stream diversion and 
erosion control plans that detail the timing and method of stream flow diversion during construction and 
show temporary siltation, erosion, and turbidity control measures to be implemented; and  
As previously mentioned, temporary erosion controls (i.e., silt fence and/or silt sock) will be 
implemented throughout construction to protect the surrounding habitat areas. No in-stream work 
or stream impacts are proposed, so no water diversion is required for this Project. Refer to the 
Erosion Control Plans provided in Appendix B. 

(b)  The contractor responsible for completion of the work shall use techniques described in Env-Wq 
1504.06, Env-Wq 1504.16, Env-Wq 1505.02, Env-Wq 1506, and Env-Wq 1508. 
The contractor responsible for the completion of the proposed work will comply with the techniques 
described in Env-Wq 1504.06 “Plan Information,” Env-Wq 1504.16 “Erosion Control Notes,” Env-Wq 
1505.02 “Required Construction Practices,” Env-Wq 1506 “Methods for Erosion and Sediment 
Control During Terrain Alteration Activities,” and Env-Wq 1508 “Permanent Methods for Protecting 
Water Quality,” as applicable.  

5.5 Env-Wt 527.06: Maintenance and Repair for Public 
Highway Projects 

(a) A public highway maintenance project that does not qualify for an SPN because the project exceeds the 
statutory criteria shall be processed through a registration process under Env-Wt 309.03 if the work 
meets the criteria for minimum impact projects established in Env-Wt 407.  
Although this Project meets the minimum impact criteria established in Env-Wt 407, roadway 
widening is beyond the scope of the definitions of “maintenance” (Env-Wt 103.321) and “repair” 
(Env-Wt 104.052). 

(b)  Replacement of dislodged rocks on an existing rip-rap portion of a legally existing permitted road 
embankment to stabilize the structure may be done without a permit. 
Not applicable. 

 
1 Env-Wt 103.32 “Maintenance” means routine activities undertaken at a sufficient frequency that the structure being maintained remains intact 

and functional for its intended purpose. 
2 Env-Wt 104.05 “Repair” when applied to any structure except a stream crossing that is subject to Env-Wt 900 means to fix or replace only those 

components of an existing legal structure that are worn, broken, or unsound so as to restore the structure to its original purpose. 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 

Appendix A: Project Mapping 
  



Source: VHB, ArcGISOnline

Project Location

Pa
th

: \
\v

hb
\g

is\
pr

oj
\B

ed
fo

rd
\5

27
76

.0
0 

Ep
pi

ng
 R

oa
d_

N
H

 R
ou

te
 2

7\
Pr

oj
ec

t\
Co

lle
ct

or
Ap

pE
pp

in
gR

oa
d.

ap
rx

 (S
Pe

lle
tie

r, 
6/

9/
20

23
)

0 2,000 4,000 Feet
N

Epping Road (NH 27) Transportation Improvements | Exeter, NH
Figure 1: USGS Map

,

PROJECT LOCATIONPROJECT LOCATION



Ray Farmstead Rd

Epping
Rd

W
illey

Creek
Rd

Cr
on

in
 R

d

Continental Dr

Source: NHGRANIT, VHB, ArcGISOnline

Limit of Work

Pa
th

: \
\v

hb
\g

is\
pr

oj
\B

ed
fo

rd
\5

27
76

.0
0 

Ep
pi

ng
 R

oa
d_

N
H

 R
ou

te
 2

7\
Pr

oj
ec

t\
Co

lle
ct

or
Ap

pE
pp

in
gR

oa
d.

ap
rx

 (S
Pe

lle
tie

r, 
6/

9/
20

23
)

0 300 600 Feet
N

Figure 2: Aerial Overview Figure
Epping Road (NH 27) Transportation Improvements | Exeter, NH

CD
2727



Ray Farmstead Rd

Epping Rd

W
illey

Creek
Rd

Cro
ni

n
Rd

Energy Way

NH Route 101 East

NH Route 101 West

Continental Dr

Kings Way Ave

Industr
ial Dr

Watson Rd

Source: NHGRANIT, VHB, ArcGISOnline

Limit of Work

1 pct. Annual Chance Flood Hazard

0.2 pct. Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Pa
th

: \
\v

hb
\g

is\
pr

oj
\B

ed
fo

rd
\5

27
76

.0
0 

Ep
pi

ng
 R

oa
d_

N
H

 R
ou

te
 2

7\
Pr

oj
ec

t\
Co

lle
ct

or
Ap

pE
pp

in
gR

oa
d.

ap
rx

 (S
Pe

lle
tie

r, 
6/

9/
20

23
)

0 600 1,200 Feet
N

Figure 3: FEMA Floodplain Figure
Epping Road (NH 27) Transportation Improvements | Exeter, NH

CD
2727



Ray Farmstead Rd

Energy Way

Continental Dr

Epping Rd

NH Route 101 East

NH Route 101 West

W
illey

Creek
Rd

Cr
on

in
Rd

Kings W
ay Ave Industr

ial Dr

Watson Rd

Source: NHGRANIT, VHB, ArcGISOnline

Limit of Work Wildlife Action Plan Tiers

1 Highest Ranked Habitat in New Hampshire

2 Highest Ranked Habitat in Biological Region

3 Supporting Landscapes

Pa
th

: \
\v

hb
\g

is\
pr

oj
\B

ed
fo

rd
\5

27
76

.0
0 

Ep
pi

ng
 R

oa
d_

N
H

 R
ou

te
 2

7\
Pr

oj
ec

t\
Co

lle
ct

or
Ap

pE
pp

in
gR

oa
d.

ap
rx

 (S
Pe

lle
tie

r, 
6/

9/
20

23
)

0 500 1,000 Feet
N

Figure 4: NHF&G WAP Ranked Habitat Map
Epping Road (NH 27) Transportation Improvements | Exeter, NH

CD
2727



Ray Farmstead Rd

Energy Way

Continental Dr

Epping Rd

NH Route 101 East

NH Route 101 West

W
illey

Creek
Rd

Cr
on

in
Rd

Kings W
ay Ave Industr

ial Dr

Watson Rd

Source: NHGRANIT, VHB, ArcGISOnline

Limit of Work Appalachian oak-pine

Developed Impervious

Developed or Barren land

Grassland

Hemlock-hardwood-pine

Open water

Peatland

Temperate swamp

Wet meadow/shrub wetland

Pa
th

: \
\v

hb
\g

is\
pr

oj
\B

ed
fo

rd
\5

27
76

.0
0 

Ep
pi

ng
 R

oa
d_

N
H

 R
ou

te
 2

7\
Pr

oj
ec

t\
Co

lle
ct

or
Ap

pE
pp

in
gR

oa
d.

ap
rx

 (S
Pe

lle
tie

r, 
6/

9/
20

23
)

0 500 1,000 Feet
N

Figure 5: NHF&G WAP Habitat Type Map
Epping Road (NH 27) Transportation Improvements | Exeter, NH

CD
2727



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 

Appendix B: Project Plans 
  



115 120 125 130 135 139

STA. 117+44
LIMIT OF WORK

STA. 134+85
LIMIT OF WORK

C
O

N
TI

N
EN

TA
L 

D
R

IV
E

R
AY

 F
AR

M
ST

EA
D

 R
O

AD

EPPING ROAD (ROUTE 27)

RT
E 

10
1 E

B 
OFF

 R
AM

P

C
R

O
N

IN
 R

O
AD

R
TE

 1
01

 E
B 

O
N

 R
AM

P

PROJECT
LOCATION

INDEX OF SHEETS
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

TITLE SHEET & INDEX
LEGEND 

8-11 WETLAND IMPACT PLANS
EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

EROSION CONTROL PLANWETLAND IMPACT PLANS

COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM
TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

EPPING ROAD (NH 27) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

1

CONTINENTAL DRIVE TO CRONIN ROAD

1

12-15

4-7
2-3

STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

-
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

15

TITLE SHEET & INDEX

52776_COV_WET19-May-23

EPPING ROAD (NH 27) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

152776.00



DRIVEWAYS

BUILDINGS

FOUNDATION

STEPS AND WALK

INTERMITTENT WATER COURSE

SHORE LINE

BRUSH OR WOODS LINE

TREES (PLANS)

HEDGE

WELL

SEPTIC TANK

LEACH FIELD

GAS PUMP

FUEL TANK (ABOVE GROUND)

GRAVE

ROCK OUTCROP

ORIGINAL GROUND

(TYPICALS & SECTIONS ONLY)

(TYPICALS)

ROCK LINE

STONE WALL

RETAINING WALL (LABEL TYPE)

SIGNS

MAILBOX

(label type)

(label type)

river/stream

(deciduous) (coniferous) (stump)

(double post)

(single post)

(label type)

SATELLITE DISH ANTENNA

DELINEATED WETLAND

BORING LOCATION

TEST PIT

ORIGINAL GROUND LINE
(PROFILES AND CROSS-SECTIONS)

PROFILE GRADE LINE
(PROFILES AND CROSS-SECTIONS)

SLOPE LINE (FILL)

SLOPE LINE (CUT)

ORIGINAL GROUND ELEVATION (LEFT)

FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION (RIGHT)

INTERSTATE NUMBERED HIGHWAY

UNITED STATES NUMBERED HIGHWAY

STATE NUMBERED HIGHWAY

PROFILES AND CROSS SECTIONS:

(label surface type)

pond

(label size & type)

FLAG POLE

ENGINEERING

SLOPE LINE

79
.1

4
72

.5

CLEARING LINE

VENT PIPE

PHONE

TIDAL BUFFER ZONE

ORDINARY HIGH WATER

SPECIAL AQUATIC SITE

TOP OF BANK

TOP OF BANK & ORDINARY HIGH WATER

VERNAL POOL

INVASIVE SPECIES

GENERAL

STORAGE TANK FILLER CAP

2

cgr

JERSEY BARRIER

WATER FRONT BUFFER

NATURAL WOODLAND BUFFER

POTENTIAL WET AREA SYMBOL

MONITORING WELL

IIIINVASIVE SPECIES LABEL

PRIME WETLAND

WETLAND DESIGNATION AND TYPE

3

BRIDGE CROSSINGS

STREAM OVERPASS

TREE OR STUMP (CROSS-SECTIONS)
(show station, circumference in feet & type)

existing PROPOSED

500 YEAR FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY

FLOODPLAIN / FLOODWAY

FLOODWAY

GROUND LIGHT/LAMP POST

FENCE (LABEL TYPE)

CURB (LABEL TYPE)

NON-JURISDICTIONAL DRAINAGE AREA

COWARDIN DISTINCTION LINE

PRIME WETLAND 100' BUFFER

WIDTH AT BANK FULL

MEAN HIGH WATER

MEAN LOW WATER

DEVELOPED TIDAL BUFFER ZONE

REFERENCE LINE

SHORELAND - WETLAND

GUARDRAIL (label type) bgr

NORMAL HIGH WATER

HIGHEST OBSERVABLE TIDE LINE

PROTECTED SHORELAND

SHEET 1 OF 2

POTENTIAL VERNAL POOL

STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

X
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

52776.00 52776_LEG.dwg

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

LEGEND

5/19/2023 2 15



  

TELEPHONE POLE

POWER POLE

JOINT OCCUPANCY

MISCELLANEOUS/UNKNOWN POLE

POLE STATUS:

AS APPLICABLE e.g.:

LIGHT POLE

LIGHT ON POWER POLE

LIGHT ON JOINT POLE

(plot point at face
not center of symbol)

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

TOWN LINE

COUNTY LINE

STATE LINE

BOUND

DRILL HOLE IN ROCK

NATIONAL FOREST

(label type)

BOW
CONCORD

COOS
GRAFTON

MAINE

IRON PIPE OR PIN

NHDOT PROJECT MARKER

PEDESTAL WITH PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL
HEADS AND PUSH BUTTON UNIT

CONTROLLER CABINET

METER PEDESTAL

PULL BOX

LOOP DETECTOR (QUADRUPOLE)

LOOP DETECTOR (RECTANGULAR)
(label size)

(label size)

PROPERTY PARCEL NUMBER

HISTORIC PROPERTY

WATER SHUT OFF

GAS SHUT OFF

RAILROAD

RAILROAD SIGN

RAILROAD SIGNAL

(label ownership)

HYDRANT

UTILITY JUNCTION BOX

MAST ARM (existing)

OPTICOM RECEIVER

OPTICOM STROBE

MANHOLE 

CATCH BASIN 

DROP INLET 

DRAINAGE PIPE (existing)

EROSION CONTROL/ STONE
SLOPE PROTECTION

(existing)

DRAINAGE

BOUNDARIES / RIGHT-OF-WAY

UTILITIES

(PROPOSED)

RCP 

12

DRAINAGE PIPE (PROPOSED)

HEADER (existing & PROPOSED)

REMOVE, LEAVE, PROPOSED, OR TEMPORARY
END SECTION (existing & PROPOSED)

OPEN DITCH (PROPOSED)

SEWER

TELEPHONE

ELECTRICAL

GAS

30' MA

NEW HAMPSHIRE

bnd
STATE LINE/
TOWN LINE MONUMENT

show
direction
of flow

(label size
& type)

(label size
& type)

UNDERDRAIN (PROPOSED)
W/ FLUSHING BASIN

MANHOLES

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

RR RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

PROPERTY LINE (COMMON OWNER)

TAX MAP AND LOT NUMBER

(with stone outlet
protection)

(on existing lines
label size, type and
note if abandoned)

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

UNDERDRAIN (existing)
W/ FLUSHING BASIN

LR

jb

cc

(NOTE ANGLE FROM B)

FENCING NOTE

CLEARING AND GRUBBING AREA

DRAINAGE NOTE

GUARDRAIL NOTE

LIGHTING NOTE

EROSION CONTROL NOTE

A

1

A

A

1

A

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

(PROPOSED)

GUY POLE OR PUSH BRACE

BENCH MARK / SURVEY DISK

METAL or PLASTIC

TELEPHONE 

ELECTRIC 

GAS 

LIGHTING 

COMMUNICATIONS DUCT BANK

INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 

WATER 

SEWER 

SIGNAL CONDUIT

PROPOSEDexisting
PROPOSEDexisting

1TRAFFIC SIGNAL NOTE

TRAFFIC SIGNALS / ITS

ITS NOTE 1

FIBER OPTIC DELINEATOR

VARIABLE SPEED LIMIT SIGN

DYNAMIC MESSAGE SIGN

FIBER OPTIC SPLICE VAULT

ROAD AND WEATHER INFO SYSTEM

CAMERA POLE (CCTV)

ITS EQUIPMENT CABINET

CONSERVATION LAND

OVERHEAD WIRE
(label type)

UNKNOWN

L

SHEET 2 OF 2

STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

X
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

52776.00 52776_LEG.dwg

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

LEGEND

5/19/2023 3 15



1
PFO1E

ST
REA

M

S-2
/R4S

B4

1
PFO1E

1
PFO1E

3
PEM1Cx

3
PEM1Cx

C
O

N
TI

N
EN

TA
L 

D
R

IV
E

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

EXIST. R.O.W.

116 117 118 119 120 121

N

WETLAND CLASSIFICATION CODES
PFO1E PALUSTRINE, FORESTED, BROAD-LEAVED DECIDUOUS, SEASONALLY

FLOODED/SATURATED

PFO1C PALUSTRINE, FORESTED, BROAD-LEAVED DECIDUOUS, SEASONALLY FLOODED

PFO1E/G PALUSTRINE, FORESTED, BROAD-LEAVED DECIDUOUS, SEASONALLY
FLOODED/SATURATED / INTERMITTENTLY EXPOSED

PSS1E PALUSTRINE, SCRUB-SHRUB, BROAD-LEAVED DECIDUOUS, SEASONALLY
FLOODED/SATURATED

PSS1C PALUSTRINE, SCRUB-SHRUB, BROAD-LEAVED DECIDUOUS, SEASONALLY FLOODED

PEM1C PALUSTRINE, EMERGENT, PERSISTENT, SEASONALLY FLOODED

PEM1Cx PALUSTRINE, EMERGENT, PERSISTENT, SEASONALLY FLOODED, EXCAVATED

PUB3H PALUSTRINE, UNCONSOLIDATED BOTTOM, MUD, PERMANENTLY FLOODED

R4SB4 RIVERINE, INTERMITTENT, STREAMBED, SAND

R5UB3 RIVERINE, UNKNOWN PERENNIAL, UNCONSOLIDATED BOTTOM, MUD

1. VHB SENIOR ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTIST, KRISTOPHER WILKES (NH CWS #288),
DELINEATED JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS AND SURFACE WATERS WITHIN AND ADJACENT
TO THE PROPOSED LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE IN JUNE 2021.

2. WETLAND DELINEATION WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES
AND STANDARDS OUTLINED IN THE REGIONAL SUPPLEMENT TO THE U.S. ARMY

    CORPS OF ENGINEERS WETLAND DELINEATION MANUAL: NORTHCENTRAL AND
NORTHEAST REGION, VERSION 2.0 (JANUARY 2012).

3. WETLAND DELINEATION ALSO RELIED UPON THE FIELD INDICATORS FOR
    IDENTIFYING HYDRIC SOILS IN THE UNITED STATES, VERSION 8.2, PUBLISHED
    BY THE NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION SERVICE AND THE FIELD INDICATORS

FOR IDENTIFYING HYDRIC SOILS IN NEW ENGLAND, VERSION 4.0, PUBLISHED BY
    THE NEW ENGLAND INTERSTATE WATER POLLUTION CONTROL COMMISSION.

4. DOMINANT WETLAND VEGETATION WAS ASSESSED USING THE NORTHCENTRAL AND
    NORTHEAST REGIONAL WETLAND PLANT LIST PUBLISHED BY THE U.S. ARMY CORPS OF
    ENGINEERS.

5. WETLANDS AND SURFACE WATERS WERE CLASSIFIED USING THE USFWS METHODOLOGY
    CLASSIFICATION OF WETLANDS AND DEEPWATER HABITATS OF THE UNITED STATES
    (COWARDIN ET AL. 1979, REVISED 1985).

6. STREAM TOP-OF-BANK DELINEATION WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ENV-WT 102.15. STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

-
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

15

EXISTING CONDITIONS

52776_EX_Sheets19-May-23

EPPING ROAD (NH 27) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

452776.00



2
PFO1E/G

2
PFO1E/G

3
PEM1Cx

3
PSS1C

3
PSS1C

4
PSS1C

4
PFO1C

4A
PFO1C

STREAM
S-3/R4SB4

S-1/R5UB3

R
AY

 F
AR

M
ST

EA
D

 R
O

AD

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

122 123 124 125 126 127
PI +25.00

PI +70.01

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

-
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

15

EXISTING CONDITIONS

52776_EX_Sheets19-May-23

EPPING ROAD (NH 27) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

552776.00



2
PFO1E/G

2
PUB3H

2
PSS1E

2
PSS1C

STREAM

S-1/R5UB3

5
PFO1C 6

PFO1C

7
PEM1C

7
PFO1C

PVP1

7
PSS1C

8
PSS1C

9
PSS1B

7
PFO1C

2
PSS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

128 129 130 131
132 133

PI +38.55
PI +50.03

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

C
R

O
N

IN
 R

O
AD

N

STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

-
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

15

EXISTING CONDITIONS

52776_EX_Sheets19-May-23

EPPING ROAD (NH 27) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

652776.00



11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

10
PSS1C

10
PFO1E

10
PFO1E

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

RTE
 10

1 O
FF

 R
AM

P

RT
E 

10
1 

O
FF

 R
AM

P

R
TE

 1
01

 O
FF

 R
AM

P

134 135 136 137 138 139

EXIST. R.O.W.

N

STATE PROJECT NO. SHEET NO. TOTAL SHEETS

SH
EE

T 
C

H
EC

KE
D

AS
 B

U
IL

T 
D

ET
AI

LS

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

D
AT

E

N
U

M
BE

R
D

AT
E

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

AF
TE

R
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L

-
DRAWING

SD
R

 P
R

O
C

C
ES

SE
D

N
EW

 D
ES

IG
N

DATE PLOTTED VHB PROJECT NO.

15

EXISTING CONDITIONS

52776_EX_Sheets19-May-23

EPPING ROAD (NH 27) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

752776.00



1
PFO1E

ST
REA

M

S-2
/R4S

B4

1
PFO1E

1
PFO1E

3
PEM1Cx

3
PEM1Cx

(6)

(5)
12"RCP

(2)

(1)

12"RCP

1
PFO1E

ST
REA

M

S-2
/R4S

B4

1
PFO1E

1
PFO1E

3
PEM1Cx

3
PEM1Cx

C
O

N
TI

N
EN

TA
L 

D
R

IV
E

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

EXIST. R.O.W.

116 117 118 119 120 121

33333333
M1CxM1CxPEMPEM1Cx1Cx1C1CCxxP M1CEMM Cx

A

TA

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

WETLAND IMPACT PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_Wet_Plans.dwg

N

LEGEND

PERMANENT WETLAND IMPACT

TYPE OF
WETLAND IMPACT

SHADING/
HATCHING WETLAND DESIGNATION NUMBER

WETLAND IMPACT LOCATION#

#

TEMPORARY WETLAND IMPACT

WETLAND IMPACT SUMMARY

IMPACT
IDENTIFICATION

WETLAND
CLASSIFICATION

WETLAND
DESIGNATION

PERMANENT
WETLAND
IMPACTS

TEMPORARY
WETLAND
IMPACTS

SF SF

A PEM1Cx 3 843
B PSS1C 4 11
C PSS1E 2 14

TA PEM1Cx 3 606
TB PSS1C 4 70
TC PSS1E 2 122

TOTAL 868 798

8 15



2
PFO1E/G

2
PFO1E/G

3
PEM1Cx

3
PSS1C

3
PSS1C

4
PSS1C

4
PFO1C

4A
PFO1C

STREAM
S-3/R4SB4

S-1/R5UB3

(13)

(12)

12
"R

CP

(11) 12"RCP

(9)

12
"R

CP

(7)

(8)

12
"R

CP

(10)

12
"R

CP

(16)

(15)

12
"R

CP
12

"R
CP

(26) (27)12"RCP

2
PFO1E/G

2
PFO1E/G

3
PEM1Cx

3
PSS1C

3
PSS1C

4
PSS1C

4
PFO1C

4A
PFO1C

STREAM
S-3/R4SB4

S-1/R5UB3

R
AY

 F
AR

M
ST

EA
D

 R
O

AD

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

122 123 124 125 126 127
PI +25.00

PI +70.01

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

3333
CxCxCxxPEM1CPEM1CPEPEMPEM1CPEM1CEMEMEMMPPPPPP M1M1M1M CP CCEMP MEM CMP M1EM

B

TBTA

A

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

WETLAND IMPACT PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_Wet_Plans.dwg

N

WETLAND IMPACT SUMMARY

IMPACT
IDENTIFICATION

WETLAND
CLASSIFICATION

WETLAND
DESIGNATION

PERMANENT
WETLAND
IMPACTS

TEMPORARY
WETLAND
IMPACTS

SF SF

A PEM1Cx 3 843
B PSS1C 4 11
C PSS1E 2 14

TA PEM1Cx 3 606
TB PSS1C 4 70
TC PSS1E 2 122

TOTAL 868 798

LEGEND

PERMANENT WETLAND IMPACT

TYPE OF
WETLAND IMPACT

SHADING/
HATCHING

WETLAND DESIGNATION NUMBER

WETLAND IMPACT LOCATION#

#

TEMPORARY WETLAND IMPACT

9 15



2
PFO1E/G

2
PUB3H

2
PSS1E

2
PSS1C

STREAM

S-1/R5UB3

5
PFO1C 6

PFO1C

7
PEM1C

7
PFO1C

PVP1

7
PSS1C

8
PSS1C

9
PSS1B

7
PFO1C

2
PSS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

(19)

(20)

15"RCP

(17)

15
"R

CP

2
PFO1E/G

2
PUB3H

2
PSS1E

2
PSS1C

STREAM

S-1/R5UB3

5
PFO1C 6

PFO1C

7
PEM1C

7
PFO1C

PVP1

7
PSS1C

8
PSS1C

9
PSS1B

7
PFO1C

2
PSS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

128 129 130 131
132 133

PI +38.55
PI +50.03

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

C
R

O
N

IN
 R

O
AD

C TC

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

WETLAND IMPACT PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_Wet_Plans.dwg

N

WETLAND IMPACT SUMMARY

IMPACT
IDENTIFICATION

WETLAND
CLASSIFICATION

WETLAND
DESIGNATION

PERMANENT
WETLAND
IMPACTS

TEMPORARY
WETLAND
IMPACTS

SF SF

A PEM1Cx 3 843
B PSS1C 4 11
C PSS1E 2 14

TA PEM1Cx 3 606
TB PSS1C 4 70
TC PSS1E 2 122

TOTAL 868 798

LEGEND

PERMANENT WETLAND IMPACT

TYPE OF
WETLAND IMPACT

SHADING/
HATCHING

WETLAND DESIGNATION NUMBER

WETLAND IMPACT LOCATION#

#

TEMPORARY WETLAND IMPACT

10 15



11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

10
PSS1C

10
PFO1E

10
PFO1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

10
PSS1C

10
PFO1E

10
PFO1E

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

RTE
 10

1 O
FF

 R
AM

P

RT
E 

10
1 

O
FF

 R
AM

P

R
TE

 1
01

 O
FF

 R
AM

P

134 135 136 137 138 139

EXIST. R.O.W.

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

WETLAND IMPACT PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_Wet_Plans.dwg

N

11 15



1
PFO1E

ST
REA

M

S-2
/R4S

B4

1
PFO1E

1
PFO1E

3
PEM1Cx

3
PEM1Cx

(6)

(5)
12"RCP

(2)

(1)

12"RCP

1
PFO1E

ST
REA

M

S-2
/R4S

B4

1
PFO1E

1
PFO1E

3
PEM1Cx

3
PEM1Cx

C
O

N
TI

N
EN

TA
L 

D
R

IV
E

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

EXIST. R.O.W.

116 117 118 119 120 121

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

EROSION CONTROL PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_ERO.dwg

N

12 15



2
PFO1E/G

2
PFO1E/G

3
PEM1Cx

3
PSS1C

3
PSS1C

4
PSS1C

4
PFO1C

4A
PFO1C

STREAM
S-3/R4SB4

S-1/R5UB3

(13)

(12)

12
"R

CP

(11) 12"RCP

(9)

12
"R

CP

(7)

(8)

12
"R

CP

(10)

12
"R

CP

(16)

(15)

12
"R

CP
12

"R
CP

(26) (27)12"RCP

2
PFO1E/G

2
PFO1E/G

3
PEM1Cx

3
PSS1C

3
PSS1C

4
PSS1C

4
PFO1C

4A
PFO1C

STREAM
S-3/R4SB4

S-1/R5UB3

R
AY

 F
AR

M
ST

EA
D

 R
O

AD

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

122 123 124 125 126 127
PI +25.00

PI +70.01

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

EROSION CONTROL PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_ERO.dwg

N

13 15



2
PFO1E/G

2
PUB3H

2
PSS1E

2
PSS1C

STREAM

S-1/R5UB3

5
PFO1C 6

PFO1C

7
PEM1C

7
PFO1C

PVP1

7
PSS1C

8
PSS1C

9
PSS1B

7
PFO1C

2
PSS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

(19)

(20)

15"RCP

(17)

15
"R

CP

2
PFO1E/G

2
PUB3H

2
PSS1E

2
PSS1C

STREAM

S-1/R5UB3

5
PFO1C 6

PFO1C

7
PEM1C

7
PFO1C

PVP1

7
PSS1C

8
PSS1C

9
PSS1B

7
PFO1C

2
PSS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

128 129 130 131
132 133

PI +38.55
PI +50.03

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

C
R

O
N

IN
 R

O
AD

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

EROSION CONTROL PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_ERO.dwg

N

14 15



11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

10
PSS1C

10
PFO1E

10
PFO1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

11
PEM/SS1E

10
PSS1C

10
PFO1E

10
PFO1E

EPPING ROAD (NH 27)

RTE
 10

1 O
FF

 R
AM

P

RT
E 

10
1 

O
FF

 R
AM

P

R
TE

 1
01

 O
FF

 R
AM

P

134 135 136 137 138 139

EXIST. R.O.W.

EPPING ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

X

EROSION CONTROL PLANS

5/19/2023 52776.00 52776_ERO.dwg

N

15 15



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 

Appendix C: Site Photographs 
  



  Representative Site Photographs – June 2021  
Epping Road Improvement Project – Exeter, NH 

 
Photo 1: View southeast at existing 12” PVC drainage pipe and culvert headwall located at the toe of the 
existing road slope adjacent to Wetland W-1.  
 

 
Photo 2: View north along the northwestern forested edge of Wetland W-1 just east (downslope) of the 
existing headwall depicted in Photo 1. 



  Representative Site Photographs – June 2021  
Epping Road Improvement Project – Exeter, NH 

 
Photo 3: View south at PSS1E finger of Wetland W-2 extending west from PUB3H interior.  

 
Photo 4: View north along the western PSS1E edge of Wetland W-2.  
 



  Representative Site Photographs – June 2021  
Epping Road Improvement Project – Exeter, NH 

 
Photo 5: View north at the PUB3H interior of Wetland W-2. 

 
Photo 6: View south at the PEM1Cx swale portion of Wetland W-3 to the south of the existing car dealership 
driveway. Associated 10” CMP pipe is depicted in the photo foreground; associated 12” PVC pipe and 
concrete headwall is depicted in the photo background. 

 



  Representative Site Photographs – June 2021  
Epping Road Improvement Project – Exeter, NH 

 
Photo 7: View north at the PEM1Cx swale portion of Wetland W-3 to the south of the existing car dealership 
driveway. Associated 10” CMP pipe is depicted in the photo background. 

 
Photo 8: View north at the PEM1Cx swale portion of Wetland W-3 to the north of the existing car dealership 
driveway. Associated 10” CMP pipe is depicted in the photo foreground.  



  Representative Site Photographs – June 2021  
Epping Road Improvement Project – Exeter, NH 

 
Photo 9: View south at the PSS1C eastern edge of Wetland W-3 located at the toe of the existing road slope.    

 
Photo 10: View southwest at the eastern tip of Wetland W-4; PFO/PSS portions of the wetland are depicted 
in the photo background.  

 



NHDES Minimum Impact Expedited Wetlands Permit Application 

 

 

 

Appendix G: USACE Appendix B 
Checklist  

   



60 

Appendix B 
New Hampshire General Permits 

Required Information and USACE Section 404Checklist 

USACE Section 404 Checklist 

1. Attach any explanations to this checklist. Lack of information could delay a USACE permit determination.
2. All references to “work” include all work associated with the project construction and operation. Work

includes filling, clearing, flooding, draining, excavation, dozing, stumping, etc.
3. See GC 3 for information on single and complete projects.
4. Contact USACE at (978) 318-8832 with any questions.
5. The information requested below is generally required in the NHDES Wetland Application. See page 61 for

NHDES references and Admin Rules as they relate to the information below.
1. Impaired Waters Yes No 
1.1 Will any work occur within 1 mile upstream in the watershed of an impaired water? See the 
following to determine if there is an impaired water in the vicinity of your work area. * 
https://nhdes-surface-water-quality-assessment-site-nhdes.hub.arcgis.com/ 
https://www.des.nh.gov/water/rivers-and-lakes/water-quality-assessment 
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/onestopdatamapper/onestopmapper.aspx 

2. Wetlands Yes No 
2.1 Are there are streams, brooks, rivers, ponds, or lakes within 200 feet of any proposed work? 
2.2 Are there proposed impacts to tidal SAS, prime wetlands, or priority resource areas? 
Applicants may obtain information from the NH Department of Resources and Economic 
Development Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) DataCheck Tool for information about resources 
located on the property at https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-DataCheck/.  

2.3 If wetland crossings are proposed, are they adequately designed to maintain hydrology, 
sediment transport & wildlife passage? 
2.4 Would the project remove part or all of a riparian buffer? (Riparian buffers are lands adjacent 
to streams where vegetation is strongly influenced by the presence of water. They are often thin 
lines of vegetation containing native grasses, flowers, shrubs and/or trees that line the stream 
banks. They are also called vegetated buffer zones.) 

2.5 The overall project site is more than 40 acres? 
2.6 What is the area of the previously filled wetlands? 
2.7 What is the area of the proposed fill in wetlands? 
2.8 What % of the overall project sire will be previously and proposed filled wetlands? 

3. Wildlife Yes No 
3.1 Has the NHB & USFWS determined that there are known occurrences of rare species, 
exemplary natural communities, Federal and State threatened and endangered species and 
habitat, in the vicinity of the proposed project? (All projects require an NHB ID number & a 
USFWS IPAC determination.) NHB DataCheck Tool: https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-
DataCheck/. USFWS IPAC website: https://ipac.ecosphere.fws.gov/ 

X
Unknown

N/A
868 sq ft

 X

X

X

X

X



 

61 
 

 
3.2 Would work occur in any area identified as either “Highest Ranked Habitat in N.H.” or “Highest 
Ranked Habitat in Ecological Region”? (These areas are colored magenta and green, 
respectively, on NH Fish and Game’s map, “2010 Highest Ranked Wildlife Habitat by Ecological 
Condition.”) Map information can be found at: 

 PDF: https://wildlife.state.nh.us/wildlife/wap-high-rank.html. 
 Data Mapper: www.granit.unh.edu. 
 GIS: www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html. 

  

3.3 Would the project impact more than 20 acres of an undeveloped land block (upland, 
wetland/waterway) on the entire project site and/or on an adjoining property(s)? 

  

3.4 Does the project propose more than a 10-lot residential subdivision, or a commercial or 
industrial development? 

  

3.5 Are stream crossings designed in accordance with the GC 31?   

4. Flooding/Floodplain Values Yes No 
4.1 Is the proposed project within the 100-year floodplain of an adjacent river or stream?   

4.2 If 4.1 is yes, will compensatory flood storage be provided if the project results in a loss of 
flood storage?  

  

5. Historic/Archaeological Resources   

For a minimum, minor or major impact project - a copy of the RPR Form 
(www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review) with your DES file number shall be sent to the NH Division of 
Historical Resources as required on Page 37 GC 14(d) of the GP document** 

  

6. Minimal Impact Determination (for projects that exceed 1 acre of permanent impact)   Yes   No 
 Projects with greater than 1 acre of permanent impact must include the following: 

 Functional assessment for aquatic resources in the project area.  
 On and off-site alternative analysis.  
 Provide additional information and description for how the below criteria are met.  

6.1 Will there be complete loss of aquatic resources on site?   
6.2 Have the impacts to the aquatic resources been avoided and minimized to the greatest 
extent practicable? 

  

6.3 Will all aquatic resource function be lost?     
6.4 Does the aquatic resource (s) have regional significance (watershed or ecoregion)?    

  6.5 Is there an on-site alternative with less impact?    
6.6 Is there an off-site alternative with less impact?    

  6.7 Will there be a loss to a resource dependent species?   
6.8 Are indirect impacts greater than 1 acre within and adjacent to the project area?   
6.9 Does the proposed mitigation replace aquatic resource function for direct, indirect, and 
cumulative impacts? 

  

*Although this checklist utilizes state information, its submittal to USACE is a federal requirement. 
** If your project is not within Federal jurisdiction, coordination with NH DHR is not required under Federal law. 

X

X
X

N/A

X

X

N/A

N/A



Supporting Notes - USACE Appendix B Form 
Epping Road Improvement Project, Exeter, NH 

1 of 1 
 

1.1 The eastern half of the Site is located within the quarter mile buffer of Norris Brook (NHRIV600030806-
01) which is listed as impaired for E. coli. The proposed activities are not expected to contribute to this 
impairment. Erosion controls will be utilized throughout construction. 

2.1-2.4 One perennial stream (identified as S-1), two intermittent streams (S-2 & S-3), and a ponded area 
associated with Wetland W-2, were delineated by VHB within 200 feet of the Site. None of these resources 
will be impacted by the proposed project. No impacts are proposed for tidal SAS, prime wetlands, PRAs, or 
riparian buffers; however, both permanent and temporary impacts are required to several roadside 
palustrine emergent and palustrine scrub-shrub wetlands which intersect the Project Area. No wetland 
crossings are proposed. Refer to Section 2.1 of the Application Narrative for more information.  

2.5-2.8 The Site consists of the existing two-lane Epping Road (NH Route 27 or NH 27) between the 
Continental Drive intersection to the south to approximately 300 feet north of the Cronin Road intersection 
within an actively developing commercial area in Exeter, NH. The Site ends south of the intersection of 
Epping Road and NH Route 101. Epping Road is bordered by forested land, palustrine wetlands, commercial 
businesses, and a single residential property. Epping Road is generally a two-lane road with turn lanes added 
at specific intersections. Proposed wetland impacts total approximately 868 sq ft of permanent impact and 
approximately 798 sq ft of temporary impact. The permanent impacts are the result of the proposed slope 
lines associated with the roadway widening and the temporary impacts include areas beyond the slope lines 
that will provide additional workspace as needed during construction. No stream impacts are proposed as 
part of this Project.  

3.1 The NHB DataCheck Report (NHB23-0464) dated February 16, 2023, identified the potential presence 
of the slender blue beardless-iris (Limniris prismatica) within the vicinity of the Site. Consequently, 
coordination with the NHB is required. Through consultation with Ashley Litwinenko (NHB), she requested 
that a survey for the slender blue beardless-iris be conducted within the proposed impact areas in mid-June 
to mid-July when the species may be in flower. If not in flower, leaf width measurements will be accepted 
to determine species presence or absence. No construction will begin until the survey is conducted and the 
NHB consultation is complete (i.e., survey results shared with NHB to obtain any additional 
recommendations). No rare animals were identified in the NHB report and therefore no further consultation 
with NHF&G Department is necessary. 

The USFWS IPaC report, dated May 22, 2023, identified the endangered northern long-eared bat (NLEB) 
and candidate species monarch butterfly (Danaus plexippus). Consultation for the NLEB is complete with a 
no effect determination. Refer to Section 2.3 of the Application Narrative for a more detailed discussion. 

3.2 The Site does not intersect nor abut any ranked habitats. Refer to Section 2.1 of the Application 
Narrative for more information and Figure 4 in Appendix A. Therefore, this Project is not expected to 
adversely impact areas of ranked wildlife habitat. 

4.1 There are no Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) mapped floodplains or floodways within 
the vicinity of the Site. Refer to the Figure 3 provided in Appendix A. 

5.0 A Request for Project Review (RPR) will be submitted to the NH Department of Historical Resources 
(NHDHR) shortly following the submission of this wetlands permit application. Refer to Section 4 of the 
Application Narrative for more information. 







1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission 1 
June 13, 2023 2 
Nowak Room 3 

10 Front Street 4 
7:00 PM 5 

Draft Minutes 6 
 7 

Call to Order 8 
 9 

1.  Introduction of Members Present (by Roll Call)  10 
 11 
Present at tonight’s meeting were by roll call, Chair Andrew Koff, Vice-Chair Trevor Mattera, Treasurer 12 
Dave Short, , Kyle Welch, Connor Madison, Alternate Bill Campbell (remotely), and Alternate Valorie 13 
Fanger 14 
 15 
Staff Present: Kristen Murphy, Conservation and Sustainability Planner 16 
 17 
Mr. Koff called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and activated Alternates Campbell and Fanger. 18 
 19 
2.  Public Comment 20 
 21 
Mr. Koff asked if there was any public comment and there was none. 22 
 23 

Action Items 24 
 25 
1.  Election of Officers 26 
 27 
Chair Koff asked if anyone was interested in serving as an officer for the next term.  Mr. Short 28 
recommended the same officers fill the same positions. 29 
 30 
MOTION:  Mr. Short motioned that the same people serve as officers in the same positions as last year 31 
for the coming year.  Mr. Welch seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion 32 
passed 7-0-0. 33 
 34 
2.  Wetland Conditional Use Permit Application for proposed utility maintenance work on the existing 35 
      A126 and H141 115-kV transmission lines for the Eversource RASH project  36 
 37 
William McCloy of Normandeau Associates presented the proposal on behalf of Eversource. 38 
 39 
Mr. McCloy indicated the project was for maintenance of existing A126 and H141 lines to replace 36 40 
structures between the two.  There is impact in the wetland overlay, work areas in the crossings and 41 
temporary and permanent access areas in the wetland buffer.  There will be NHDES and other permits, 42 
Army Corp and AoT.  There will be state permit by notification. 43 



2 
 

Matt Cardin welcomed questions.  He indicated the locations from 101 to Town Forest, Raynes Farm, 44 
across the river into Stratham.  Mr. Koff noted Watson and Raynes were done in the past.  Mr. Cardin 45 
explained how the inspection process drives the replacement of structures from wood to steel.  Last 46 
year work was done on Captain’s Way for a separate line.  Mr. Short asked about filling gaps.  Mr. Cardin 47 
noted there is a justification process for replacement including cost and value. 48 
 49 
Mr. Koff recommended a better way to communicate where work has already been done on the plan. 50 
 51 
Mr. Campbell asked if it were more efficient to do them all at once.  Mr. Cardin discussed timber 52 
matting and coordinating with the farmer who was doing the haying.   53 
 54 
Mr. Welch asked about a start date, which will be the middle to end of August, but some work can’t 55 
start until after October 15th per recommendation from Fish & Game. 56 
 57 
Mr. Short asked about use of the parking lot while the work is done in the ROW.  Mr. Cardin indicated 58 
there will be no staging or storage of equipment in the parking lot, but it is in the ROW where they will 59 
be working.   60 
 61 
Ms. Murphy asked about nesting turtles and Mr. Cardin indicated Fish & Game only recommended time 62 
of year restrictions.   Ms. Murphy advised that the gravel changes the substrate, and the turtles will 63 
need sandy soil or nesting. 64 
 65 
Mr. Madison indicated he would be recusing himself as he works on the project. 66 
 67 
Mr. Koff asked if work at Raynes Farm would be impacted, and Ms. Murphy noted the contractor works 68 
up near the barn. 69 
 70 
Mr. Koff reviewed the criteria.  He noted the work is permitted in the district, there was no alternate 71 
design heard, the functions and values were not discussed but provided, best management practices are 72 
in place, safety was addressed with regard to the parking lot and popular areas.  Mr. Cardin noted there 73 
would be signs redirecting trail users as needed.  Mr. Short will notify Fort Rock Riders.  Mr. Welch asked 74 
if there would be temporary trail closures and Mr. Cardin indicated there would.  Mr. Koff 75 
recommended notifying the Raynes Stewardship Committee.  Ms. Murphy will notify them. 76 
 77 
Mr. Koff noted #6 was not applicable and #7 temporary disturbances will be restored and #8 other 78 
permits were discussed. 79 
 80 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned that the Commission has no objection to the CUP as proposed.  Mr. 81 
Mattera seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 6-0-1 with Mr. 82 
Madison recusing and abstaining. 83 
 84 
Mr. Koff noted a memo would be drafted to the Planning Board before their July meeting. 85 
  86 



3 
 

3.  Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Dredge and Fill application for 772 square feet of wetland 87 
      impact associated with the construction of a residential driveway for a new single-family house at 24  88 
      Powdermill Road 89 
      Tax Map 102-04 (Daniel Coons) 90 
 91 
Ms. Murphy indicated the application was tabled.  She provided the Commission with a copy of the 92 
request letter.  Wetlands need to be delineated  They will need wetlands and CUP.  A site walk was 93 
recommended for 5 PM on July 11th. 94 
 95 
4.  Shoreland Conditional Use Permit or shoreland buffer impacts resulting from site improvements  96 
      associated with a three-unit condo conversion at 14 Hobart Street 97 
      Tax Map 74-Lot 88 (Alex Ross) 98 
 99 
Mr. Koff read the public hearing notice. 100 
 101 
Alex Ross presented the proposal for a three-unit condominium conversion at 14 Hobart Street.  He 102 
noted a shoreland permit would be required for the small site along Little River within the 250’ setback.  103 
There would be no wetland impact or impact within the 100’ buffer.  The owner has been to the ZBA to 104 
get variances concerning the configuration of the lot and will have site review with the Planning Board.  105 
He noted there used to be a leach field but have changed to town sewer.  A large asphalt driveway will 106 
be removed, and pervious pavers installed for stormwater drainage.   Hobart Street is sloped to Little 107 
River.  Wetlands were delineated and Marc Jacobs is present. 108 
 109 
Mr. Koff asked about the ZBA.   Mr. Ross noted the third unit was a garage being converted to a housing 110 
unit.  Ms. Murphy noted that condo conversions for three or more units must go to the ZBA.  All three 111 
units are on town sewer. 112 
 113 
Mr. Koff addressed controlled sanding and maintenance of the pervious pavers.  Ms. Murphy 114 
recommended a condition appear in the condo documents referencing maintenance. 115 
 116 
Mr. Koff reviewed the criteria.  Not detrimental to surface water and quality of the river.  There is sewer 117 
connection, so he doesn’t see any impact there.  No discharge or waste, again no septic on site.  No 118 
damage to spawning or wildlife.  Design meets 9.3.4 of the ordinance. 119 
 120 
MOTION:  Mr. Short motioned that the Commission has no objection to the permit with the condition 121 
that the condominium documents reference maintenance instructions for pervious pavement and 122 
limitations to use of fertilizer.  Mr. Mattera seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, 123 
the motion passed 7-0-0. 124 
 125 
5.  Committee Reports 126 
 127 
 a.  Property Management 128 

 129 
  i.  Raynes – repair progress update 130 



4 
 

 131 
Ms. Murphy reported the contractor is working on siding and window repairs, 132 
foundation work is ongoing and progressing well.  The next milestone will be to photo 133 
document repairs at the half way mark and provide information to L-Chip, have a site 134 
visit before releasing the second payment.  Ms. Murphy noted there was some filming 135 
with Exeter TV. 136 
 137 
Ms. Murphy noted they are still looking at other funding sources.  She was not going to 138 
make the Moose plate deadline but Ms. Fanger helped research other grants that look 139 
promising.  Ms. Fanger noted they have emailed information to various foundations and 140 
Ms. Murphy will submit the CIP information this year. 141 

 142 
  ii.  Stone Property Mowing Plan $975 July, $975 September 143 

 144 
Ms. Murphy reported that an assessment was done recommending two cuts in the 145 
summer and fall.  Ms. Fanger asked why, and Mr. Koff indicated some of the reasons to 146 
maintain a diverse habitat for birds and other wildlife. 147 
 148 
MOTION:  Mr. Short motioned to approve expenditure of $975 in July and $975 in 149 
September out of the conservation fund for mowing at the stone property.  Mr. Welch 150 
seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 7-0-0. 151 
 152 

 b.  Trails 153 
 154 
  i.  Report from June 3rd HS trail maintenance day 155 
  156 

Ms. Murphy reported that she and Mr. Welch attended the High School Trail 157 
Maintenance Day on June 3rd.   A group of six people volunteered to work to reclaim the 158 
trail around the pond.  There was a lot of cutting to do and poison ivy which would be 159 
dealt with better in the winter.  Muskrats have breached a portion of the pond.  Ms. 160 
Murphy noted it is part of the stormwater management system.  Mr. Welch noted a 161 
bridge might be best. 162 

 163 
 c.  Outreach Events 164 
 165 

  i.  Alewife Festival 166 
 167 

Ms. Murphy reported the Alewife Festival was a success.  She sent out a follow-up 168 
survey and folks would like to see planning be done earlier so more entities can get 169 
involved.  There was a decent turnout but a challenge to get the word out.  Mr. Mattera 170 
noted the alewife have exploded in return the past few years.  Mr. Welch noted photos 171 
on the website of eagles and herons and a seal named Rupert.  Ms. Murphy noted that 172 
Ginny had a great idea to set up a display at the barn where people can come and 173 
display their work with a nature theme. 174 

 175 



5 
 

Ms. Murphy noted she is working with Bob Glowacky at Exeter TV to get a camera at the 176 
string bridge.  The date for next year’s festival can be discussed at the next meeting. 177 

 178 
  ii.  McDonnell Property Walking Group 179 
 180 

Ms. Murphy reported a group went out midday on Tuesday to the McDonnell property 181 
and about 15 attended, two of which were daughters of the original owner and it was 182 
great to hear their stories. 183 
 184 
Mr. Koff asked if anyone had any other outreach ideas and if so, to email him. 185 

 186 
  iii.  VRAP – Voluntary River Assessment Program 187 
 188 
  Ms. Murphy noted the presentation was posted. 189 
 190 
 d.  Other Committee Reports (River Study, Sustainability, Energy/CPAC, Tree, CC Roundtable) 191 
 192 

i.  Pickpocket Dam 193 
 194 
Mr. Mattera reported on the river study and what classified the dam as high risk, 195 
concerning the amount of water flow in certain storm situations based on the value of 196 
property downstream.  Some preliminary solutions were discussed such as raising the 197 
abutment or removing. 198 

 199 
6.  Approval of Minutes 200 

 201 
 i.  January 10, 2023 Meeting 202 
 203 

MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned to approve the January 10, 2023 meeting minutes.  Mr. Short 204 
seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, Ms. Fanger abstained.  The motion passed 6-0-1. 205 

 206 
 ii.  May 9, 2023 Meeting 207 
 208 

MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned to approve the May 9, 2023 meeting minutes, as amended.  Mr. 209 
Mattera seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 7-0-0. 210 
 211 

7.  Correspondence 212 
 213 
Mr. Koff reported Don Clement was recognized for his service as an outstanding volunteer, and for all he 214 
has done, by the Gulf of Maine Council.  Mr. Clement has served on ERSLAC for a long time. There is a 215 
tribute to him on the webpage. 216 
 217 
8.   Other Business 218 
 219 
Ms. Murphy reviewed some of the wetland rule changes at the state level and the ability to address 220 
those amendments before July 10th with a comment letter.  The NHACC was sending one and the 221 



6 
 

Commission could send a letter as well with a couple of people authorized to prepare the letter outside 222 
the meeting. 223 
 224 
Ms. Murphy reported that one change is mitigation at the local level in lieu of fee based on a threshold 225 
the state would go straight to a fee in lieu and prioritize restoration projects which are expensive and 226 
complicated for communities. 227 
 228 
Mr. Short noted there would be a major loss of control there. 229 
 230 
Ms. Murphy reported another change is the permit by notification or expedited which was within ten 231 
days of receipt will now go to 25 days if there is no signature from Conservation. 232 
 233 
The Commission agreed they would like to comment on the change from mitigation to fee in lieu. 234 
 235 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned to craft a comment letter to NH DES.  Mr. Short seconded the motion and 236 
added and to authorize Mr. Koff and Ms. Murphy to draft the letter.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, 237 
the motion passed 7-0-0. 238 
 239 
9.  Next Meeting:  Date Scheduled (7/11/23), Submission Deadline (6/30/23) 240 
 241 
10.  Adjournment 242 
 243 
MOTION:   Mr. Koff moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:54 PM seconded by Mr. Short.  A vote was 244 
taken, all were in favor, the motion passed unanimously. 245 
 246 

Respectfully submitted, 247 

 248 
Daniel Hoijer, Recording Secretary 249 
Via Exeter TV 250 
Zoom ID 824 7092 3159 251 


	Town of Exeter
	Planning Board Application
	for
	9.1.6 B.   Conditions:
	1. That the proposed use is permitted in the underlying zoning district;
	2. That the use for which the permit is sought cannot feasibly be carried out on a portion or portions of the lot which are outside the Wetlands Conservation Overlay District;
	3. The proposed impact has been evaluated in the context of the relative “value” of the wetland, including its ecological sensitivity, as well as its function within the greater hydrologic system.  To the extent feasible, the proposed impact is not de...
	4. That the design, construction and maintenance of the proposed use will, to the extent feasible, minimize detrimental impact on the wetland or wetland buffer and that no alternative design which does not impact a wetland or wetland buffer or which h...
	5. In cases where the proposed use is temporary or where construction activity disturbs areas adjacent to the immediate use, that the landowner agrees to restore the site as nearly as possible to its original grade and condition following construction;
	6. That the proposed use will not create a hazard to individual or public health, safety and welfare due to the loss of wetland, the contamination of groundwater, or other reasons;
	7. That all required permits shall be obtained from the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services Water Supply and Pollution Control Division under NH RSA §485-A: 17, the New Hampshire Wetlands Board under  NH RSA §483-A, and the United State...


	Epping Road Wetlands Permit Application_Compiled_Town_Electronic Version.pdf
	Introduction and Project Description
	Site Description and Existing Conditions
	2.1 Natural Resource Review
	2.2 Natural Resource Delineation
	2.3 Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Species
	2.4 Property Ownership and Abutters

	Impact Analysis and Best Management Practices
	3.1 Proposed Impacts and Mitigation Assessment
	3.2 Best Management Practices

	Other Agency Coordination
	Project-Specific Requirements (Env-Wt 500)
	5.1 Env-Wt 527.02: Approval Criteria for Public Highways
	5.2 Env-Wt 527.03: Application Requirements for Public Highway Projects
	5.3 Env-Wt 527.04: Design Requirements for Public Highway Projects
	5.4 Env-Wt 527.05: Construction Requirements for Public Highway Projects
	5.5 Env-Wt 527.06: Maintenance and Repair for Public Highway Projects

	00_Compiled Appendices_Epping Road.pdf
	03_NHB23-0464 - NHB Consultation Memo_Epping Road_with attachments.pdf
	Natural Resource Descriptions
	Granite Bridge Project Iris Consultation (NHB18-1168)
	Final Thoughts
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Appendix E_1_USFWS IPaC Report_5.22.23_Epping Road - NLEB & Monarch.pdf
	United States Department of the Interior
	FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

	Official Species List
	Project summary
	Endangered Species Act species
	Mammals
	Insects
	Critical habitats

	IPaC User Contact Information
	Lead Agency Contact Information


	Appendix E_2_2023-05-22_NLEB NE Consistency Letter_ Epping Road.pdf
	United States Department of the Interior
	FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

	Determination key result
	Qualification interview
	Project questionnaire
	IPaC User Contact Information
	Lead Agency Contact Information


	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	July Meeting Memo.pdf
	Date:  July 7th, 2023

	Blank Page



